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          2                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: I do not want to

          3  speak long, as some others may have some comments

          4  and I have some questions I intend to ask as we go

          5  on, but here are some of our preliminary findings.

          6                 Seventeen of the fifty-one Council

          7  Districts have no homeless facilities.  This is out

          8  of a couple of hundreds of such facilities, not

          9  including scattered site housing, which may make the

         10  discrepancy even more severe.  On the opposite end

         11  of the spectrum some Council Districts have twenty

         12  such facilities, housing thousands upon thousands of

         13  homeless residents.

         14                 Certain Districts are clearly

         15  receiving a disproportionate burden of homeless

         16  facilities.  Notice and Fair Share policies are

         17  clearly not being adhered to.  Now having stated

         18  this, I want to be clear, we do not think such

         19  policy has been the intentional policy of DHS.

         20  Something has run seriously amuck and the reason for

         21  this hearing is to find out what exactly.

         22                 DHS has been extremely cooperative

         23  and has sent us many things that we have requested

         24  from them.  We simply want to inquire as to what is

         25  happening and see if this legislation could perhaps
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          2  address this perceived slight.

          3                 I want to preempt any accusations

          4  that this hearing or concerns or some people's part

          5  about this issue is rooted in any type of NIMBY

          6  attitude "Not In My Back Yard."  It is rather the

          7  job of representatives to make sure their community

          8  is not being taken advantage of.  Any accusations

          9  made today are being made at a system that is not

         10  providing adequate timely notice to communities with

         11  the upshot being the existence of clear disparities

         12  and how many homeless facilities are being housed by

         13  certain neighborhoods.

         14                 Adequate notification allows

         15  communities to take part in the community building

         16  process.  Proper notification would also alert the

         17  administration to the imbalance that exists by

         18  including the voice of the people in their siting

         19  process.

         20                 Without notification and community

         21  input, the administration will be blinded to such

         22  imbalances fueling the anger and failing

         23  communities, and creating concerns that homeless

         24  people are being steered to certain communities

         25  because of the race or class of that community,
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          2  rather than through a proper Fair Share analysis and

          3  notification.

          4                 Hopefully, Intro. 274 is a step in

          5  the right direction of providing such adequate

          6  notice.

          7                 This hearing is a Joint Hearing with

          8  the General Welfare Committee, who has conducted

          9  many hearings themselves with DHS about the issues

         10  that confront DHS and the City.

         11                 Before turning to them, I want to

         12  announce the name of this bill.  It will be known as

         13  the James E. Davis Community Notification Bill.

         14                 If we could please take a moment of

         15  silence for our late colleague.  Thank you.

         16                 (Moment of Silence Observed.)

         17                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: I would like to

         18  now introduce the members of my Committee and then

         19  ask Chairman DeBlasio if he has any comments and

         20  Council Member Addabbo, if you would like to say any

         21  words about the bill.

         22                 First I want to acknowledge to my

         23  immediate right, Chairman of the General Welfare

         24  Committee Bill DeBlasio.  Next to him, on the far

         25  right is Council Member Philip Reed, who is also the
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          2  Chair of our Consumer Affairs Committee.  Let me

          3  take this moment Council Member Reed, to commend you

          4  on your outstanding victory in the Democratic

          5  Primary.  It speaks well not only to the wonderful

          6  work you are doing, but to the vision and

          7  intelligence of your constituency.

          8                 Starting on my far left, I would like

          9  to acknowledge Council Member Serrano, Jr., the new

         10  prime sponsor of the bill, Council Member Addabbo,

         11  who is our Parks and Recreation's Chair. Serrano is

         12  our Chair of Cultural Affairs.  Next to Council

         13  Member Addabbo is the Chair of our Public Safety

         14  Committee, Peter Vallone. On the far right Majority

         15  Whip and Chair of Rules, Privileges and Elections

         16  Council Member Leroy Comrie.  I want to acknowledge

         17  our Counsel to the Committee of Governmental

         18  Operations Matthew Tollin, our Press Secretary Luke

         19  Raytard (phonetic) and also Jacqueline Sherman,

         20  Counsel to the General Welfare Committee.  I would

         21  also like to acknowledge the presence of Madeline

         22  Provenzano, Chair of our Housing and Buildings

         23  Committee. And now, Council Member DeBlasio.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO:  Thank you

         25  Chair Perkins.  I will be very brief.  First of all
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          2  for a moment there I felt a great burden lifted from

          3  my shoulders, as I was no longer Chair of the

          4  Committee for just a brief moment, but it wasn't

          5  true.

          6                 I want to thank Bill Perkins for his

          7  leadership. We've served together on the General

          8  Welfare Committee for almost two years now and what

          9  I always appreciate is he strives to find the truth

         10  which is a difficult thing to do in government, but

         11  always motivated by a very humane instinct to help

         12  everyone in the community, so I want to thank him

         13  for that.

         14                 I want to thank Janet Minto for being

         15  here.  I just want to say, I was lucky enough to

         16  hear from James Davis on this issue a number of

         17  times because I know he cared deeply.  What was

         18  always clear to me was that he really wanted the

         19  community to be involved in ensuring the best

         20  outcome but he always approached it from a

         21  perspective of compassion.  I never heard him say

         22  anything that he suggested he didn't want to help

         23  those in greatest need. But, I always heard him

         24  believe fiercely that the community needed to be

         25  part of the solution and really brought in at the
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          2  beginning. I just want to thank his whole family and

          3  his staff for carrying on his legacy.

          4                 I want to thank some of our

          5  colleagues who are not here right now, might be

          6  coming later on, but have worked very intensely on

          7  this issue, Hiram Monserrate, Diana Reyna, Erik

          8  Dilan, who have all been facing this issue in their

          9  communities and trying to constructively work on it.

         10                 I just want to say very quickly, from

         11  my experience, I think we can find a better way of

         12  doing business.  It's a very, very tough situation

         13  this City faces, the all time record high in the

         14  number of people in our shelter system.  I am sure

         15  the Commissioner will be giving us an update on that

         16  situation.  I know the Commissioner or colleagues do

         17  not have an easy task.  But, I have seen with my own

         18  eyes where we can achieve the goals helping those in

         19  greatest need, but also bring the community into the

         20  process.  It happened in my own community with the

         21  women's shelter on 8th Avenue and 14th Street in

         22  Park Slope.  It happened when I was an official at

         23  HUD with a shelter that we put into Bay Ridge, which

         24  was a very, very difficult context, but after a

         25  great deal of dialogue with community leaders we
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          2  found a way to make it work. So, I think there is a

          3  difficult, but productive path that can be followed

          4  to engage the community and make things work.

          5                 And, finally, I wanted to say, what

          6  we've worked on in the General Welfare Committee for

          7  two years now, is trying to work with DHS and the

          8  administration to find ways to prevent homelessness

          9  before it starts and I think that is really the big

         10  picture question here always.  We always have to

         11  remember that the more we can do to work together to

         12  prevent homelessness, the less we're dealing with

         13  this kind of issue of how do we accommodate shelters

         14  in communities.

         15                 And lastly, I want to say I

         16  appreciate this legislation because I think it just

         17  creates more transparency, it creates more of a

         18  sense of understanding of how things are working, it

         19  creates more assurance in the community that they

         20  understand what's happening with them and to them

         21  and can be a part of the process and that's its

         22  strength.

         23                 So again, thank you Chair Perkins and

         24  I look forward to the hearing.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you very
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          2  much Council Member DeBlasio.  Council Member

          3  Addabbo.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Thank you Mr.

          5  Chair.

          6                 Good morning.  I am thankful and

          7  honored to be now the prime sponsor of Intro. 274- A

          8  and I want to thank James Davis and his staff for

          9  the work that they have done and the thoughtfulness

         10  that they have given to this issue, and for our

         11  discussions regarding this issue.  I know James

         12  Davis definitely had some sincere thoughts about the

         13  homeless shelter issue.

         14                 I am just of the opinion that you

         15  know the concerns, the problems that are associated

         16  with this issue, the fears and basically the

         17  underlying animosity sometimes that comes along with

         18  these issues, can all be resolved for the most part

         19  through a little participation, a little input, a

         20  little communication.  I think that is what really

         21  drives this Intro. 274- A, so I look forward to

         22  seeing it progress throughout the City Council.

         23                 Once again, I am honored to be the

         24  prime sponsor. Thank you Mr. Chair.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you.  I
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          2  want to acknowledge the presence of Michael Nelson,

          3  member of the Government of Operations Committee.

          4                 Now we will begin with our first

          5  panel which will be the Department of Homeless

          6  Services, represented by Commissioner Linda Gibbs.

          7  Is Mr. Robert Muscalli (phonetic) the Deputy

          8  Commissioner with you today?

          9                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: No.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Okay.  I have

         11  Robert Muscalli, Deputy Commissioner of Operations.

         12                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: (Mic. not turned

         13  on.)

         14                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Oh, it is just

         15  yourself?  Oh, okay, great.  Very good.

         16                 Do you have written testimony?

         17                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: Yes, I do.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you.  You

         19  may proceed.

         20                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Do you want to

         22  swear her in?

         23                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Good morning.

         24                 Could you please raise your right

         25  hand?
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          2                 Do you solemnly swear or affirm the

          3  testimony you are about to give is the truth, the

          4  whole truth and nothing but the truth?

          5                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: I do.

          6                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Thank you.

          7                 Could you please for the record state

          8  your name and your position with the Administration?

          9                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: Sure.

         10                 Good morning members of the Council.

         11  My name is Linda Gibbs and I am the Commissioner of

         12  the Department of Homeless Services.

         13                 I welcome this opportunity to discuss

         14  with you a very pressing social issue here today in

         15  this chamber where we so recently and violently lost

         16  a colleague we cared deeply about.  A colleague who

         17  was committing his talents to making our community a

         18  stronger one.

         19                 I had the honor of working with

         20  Council Member Davis and I knew him to be a person

         21  who was passionate about serving his community,

         22  speaking out to those in need and calling on each

         23  one of us to be responsible in our actions.  I

         24  extend my condolences, again here today, to his

         25  family, his community and Council colleagues who
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          2  have suffered such a tragic loss.

          3                 And I say that I welcome this

          4  opportunity to be here today quite sincerely.

          5  Council Member Perkins, when you called to invite

          6  me, I meant it when I said I will go anywhere, any

          7  time anyone invites me, to talk about the terrible

          8  tragedy of homelessness we are experiencing in this

          9  City, but no where more so than here, to the City

         10  Council.  I worked here myself for five years

         11  because I believe that creating and maintaining a

         12  strong legislative voice in our City is crucial to

         13  encourage and support a healthy dialogue about

         14  urgent social issues.  I have a great respect for

         15  this body.  I remain committed not only to

         16  responsibly doing my job, but also to cooperate with

         17  you in doing yours.

         18                 I am, however, very disappointed in

         19  the topic of today's hearing.  As we face the worst

         20  homeless crisis this City has experienced in recent

         21  history, this Council has held only two non-

         22  mandated oversight hearings on the issue, and both

         23  of them on one topic "How to Manage New Shelter

         24  Development In Communities".

         25                 I thought the last hearing offered
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          2  promise of a constructive dialogue and improved

          3  collaboration.  I am disappointed that did not

          4  evolve.  I am also disappointed that a second

          5  committee has chosen to start the conversation anew.

          6                 Further, it is disheartening how

          7  little attention has been given to how we are going

          8  to end the trauma of homelessness for so many

          9  thousands of people who silently suffer their crisis

         10  everyday.  The Council is a necessary partner in

         11  this conversation if we, as a City are to succeed.

         12  I need this institution to struggle with me over how

         13  we are to ensure that fewer of your constituents

         14  need to enter the front door of a shelter, from the

         15  aging men that the world has given up on, to the

         16  newborn children with lives full of promise.

         17                 The City's response to homelessness

         18  simply must be more than building shelter.  I need

         19  each of you to add your voice to the proposition

         20  that we do not have to tolerate mass homelessness in

         21  this City, for this is a solvable social ill.  If we

         22  don't do that, then the Council will be having this

         23  same hearing year in and year out.  Promises will be

         24  made that cannot be kept because our collective

         25  response will be limited to managing shelter
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          2  development in our communities, to managing

          3  homelessness, which we should not tolerate in the

          4  first place.

          5                 Many of you are interested in helping

          6  to find long term solutions.  I know I am not alone

          7  in expressing concern for the education of the

          8  16,000 children who will fall to sleep tonight in a

          9  municipal shelter.  Sixteen thousand children, it is

         10  worth saying that again.  These are big issues.

         11  They deserve big discussion.  And again I affirm my

         12  willingness, eagerness to work with you to find real

         13  solutions.

         14                 I am available to answer your

         15  questions.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you very

         17  much for your testimony and I can appreciate your

         18  concerns about why we are still addressing this

         19  matter and obviously it is because it is still a

         20  matter that has not been resolved.  While

         21  understandably there has been some conversations

         22  with you and the General Welfare Committee on this

         23  matter, clearly the concerns of the community demand

         24  that we continue to look at this at the point at

         25  which it is impacting the neighborhood.
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          2                 No one would suggest that we are not

          3  interested in preventing homelessness, and I think

          4  it is a little bit unfair for you to suggest that we

          5  are not concerned about that or that we are not

          6  taking initiatives to address that.  Clearly, this

          7  Council has been interested in developing housing,

          8  affordable housing and in that respect addressing

          9  the homeless situation that this City is under.

         10                 But, right now, that we are

         11  developing those new opportunities to prevent

         12  homelessness, the fact of the matter is that

         13  communities are feeling overburdened, out of the

         14  loop, in terms of discussions about siting, and your

         15  agency happens to be the agency that takes the lead

         16  in that regard.  I myself have had conversations

         17  with you individually, as well as with your staff,

         18  in terms of how my particular neighborhood has been

         19  impacted and has been concerned about the manner in

         20  which sitings have been done, almost to the extent

         21  that people have characterized me as dumping, and

         22  even well- intentioned people have felt opposed to

         23  participating in the process.

         24                 So, clearly, this hearing is

         25  absolutely necessary, this dialogue is absolutely
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          2  necessary because the Administration, at this point

          3  in time is not quite gotten the message, so to

          4  speak, to include communities in the notification in

          5  a timely way of when such facilities are going to be

          6  made available to them.  And so that's the reason

          7  why we are here and I would hope that you would

          8  continue to be as cooperative as possible in trying

          9  to get us past this particular hurdle, as we begin

         10  to also try to do preventive measures as well.

         11                 Let me ask you a question.  The

         12  Committee requested that all transitional housing be

         13  broken out by Council District. The response did not

         14  include scattered sites. Is there a reason or is

         15  that type of information available?

         16                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: We certainly have

         17  the address of every apartment that is in the

         18  scattered site's program. I am pleased to say the

         19  program is smaller now, than the last time I

         20  appeared before this body.  We have been successful

         21  in closing over 120 of our program that was 2,000

         22  units and we are going to continue to pursue that

         23  over this up- coming year as part of our overall

         24  strategy to improve shelter services.

         25                 The apartments, because the providers

                                                            20

          1  GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS AND GENERAL WELFARE

          2   -- I could provide a headquarter listing for the

          3  providers, otherwise each provider has unit centers

          4  scattered across communities, so there is not an

          5  immediately apparent way, of the way to represent

          6  that geographically.  We could certainly work on

          7  that with you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: So, let me just

          9  ask, how much of such housing -- scattered site

         10  housing is there, do you know offhand?

         11                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: We -- 2,000 minus

         12  120 is 1,880, almost 1,900.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: I can't hear you

         14  well because of the air conditioner.

         15                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: Let, me try to

         16  bring the mic a little bit closer.

         17                 So, probably just over 1,800 units,

         18  individual apartment units.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Do you have

         20  those units broken out in some sort of geographic

         21  distribution -- so the Council can manage to do some

         22   --

         23                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: We have the

         24  individual apartment addresses, but we have never

         25  broken it down like that, so we haven't mapped it,

                                                            21

          1  GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS AND GENERAL WELFARE

          2  so to speak.  We can work on that, if that is

          3  something you would like to see.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Okay.  I would

          5  like to see that because one of the intentions of

          6  notification is so that communities can see where

          7  these types of facilities or these types of housing

          8  needs are being placed, not simply these would be

          9  their District or these would be their neighborhood,

         10  but also how they are distributed throughout their

         11  borough or throughout the City that would sort of

         12  give them an appreciation of whether or not there is

         13  a compliance with Fair Share.  To some extent what

         14  you have shared with us quite forthrightly

         15  represents that most of these sites are in

         16  communities that are African- American, Latino,

         17  communities of color, as opposed to being

         18  distributed in some sort of equitable fashion

         19  throughout the City.

         20                 The question is, why is that the

         21  case?  Why is it that certain communities seem to be

         22  disproportionately bearing the responsibility

         23  heroically so, especially since in many cases they

         24  are not playing the NIMBY game, but nevertheless

         25  other communities are not experiencing the
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          2  opportunity themselves.

          3                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: I think if I can

          4  comment on the list of the shelter facilities that

          5  we shared with you by Council District, the first

          6  thing that I think that shows is that there are

          7  shelters in fact distributed throughout the City.

          8  There are seventeen out of -- I didn't count, if

          9  your count is correct that seventeen out of the

         10  fifty- one Council Districts do not have facilities.

         11    That means that the vast majority do.  At the same

         12  time --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Why is it that

         14  the seventeen have absolutely none?

         15                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: You know I --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Why is it that

         17  those happen to be in Districts that for the most

         18  part are represented in the so called, outer

         19  boroughs or in white areas?

         20                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: Well I think -- I

         21  can't speak to the reason behind the individual

         22  facility openings, most of them occurred prior to my

         23  coming to the agency.  I think that there are a

         24  number of different things that influence whether or

         25  not a facility is an appropriate facility for
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          2  shelter.  That is largely the building stock and the

          3  type of facilities that you would find in a

          4  community larger --.  Our shelter facilities house a

          5  significant number of individuals in each facility,

          6  and particularly over the most recent years we have

          7  been trying very hard to convert facilities of prior

          8  non- residential use to shelter use, such that when

          9  we provide shelter we are not taking housing off the

         10  market.  In fact, that is one thing in the reduction

         11  of the scattered site's program, that we hope to

         12  achieve as we return those units back to the

         13  community.  That is a restoration of permanent

         14  housing for those communities.

         15                 So, I think in part it is described

         16  by the building stock that is available in the

         17  communities, whether or not that building stock is

         18  empty, vacant and available for alternative use, and

         19  I also would note that the distribution of shelters

         20  across the City is not disproportionate to the

         21  distribution of demand for shelter.  And to me, that

         22  is good news.  The reason that is good news is that

         23  another change, that I hope to see happen in the

         24  shelter system starting this month in fact, is to do

         25  a much better job of placing families in shelters in
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          2  their communities so that children's schooling

          3  doesn't need to be disrupted, families connections

          4  to community ties don't need to be disrupted,

          5  families can continue to observe their faith in

          6  their house of worship in their community, where

          7  ever that might be and the more that we can avoid

          8  those kinds of community and social disruptions, the

          9  better.             So, as I think about how to move

         10  the system to one that isn't community based, I

         11  think about whether the shelters are in the

         12  communities where we are seeing the demands for

         13  shelter coming from.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: The concern -- I

         15  just want to be very frank about this because I

         16  think for some communities this is the heart of the

         17  matter.  And, I won't do this without some

         18  accusatory or inflammatory, but it is a very, very

         19  significant part of the problem.

         20                 The rational has been that we are

         21  returning these people to their neighborhoods. In

         22  order to keep their family ties, keep their

         23  community ties, keep their children in the schools,

         24  keep them near their places of worship, but the

         25  reality is from the perspective of the community
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          2  boards from the perspective of the community

          3  leaders, that is not what's happening in many, many

          4  cases and I can even testify to that in terms of my

          5  own District, which is one of those that has twenty

          6  such facilities in which quite frankly the community

          7  has not rolled up in arms to get such facilities,

          8  but nevertheless has constantly expressed some

          9  concern and I hear this from my colleagues

         10  throughout. And so the concern is that in fact while

         11  that is the rationale it has always been the

         12  rationale for such facilities, in fact that's not

         13  the case.  There is no statistics that show that and

         14  in fact that is not necessarily the best approach or

         15  the approach that has been taken to doing this, but

         16  nevertheless certain communities become overwhelmed

         17  with these facilities and other communities,

         18  especially in so- called white communities, don't

         19  have these facilities at all.  It is very important

         20  to put this out there frankly and clearly as that,

         21  because that is in many cases the crux of the

         22  matter.

         23                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: And, your

         24  Committee Council requested some information about

         25  the geographic demand for shelter, which we
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          2  provided, and I think it is exactly that kind of

          3  information that can help us to understand whether

          4  or not there is the responsiveness of the provision

          5  of shelter to the communities where the need exists.

          6    I want to also come back to my opening statement,

          7  to say I would much prefer to think about what are

          8  the interventions that we can have that are going to

          9  be successful in reaching out to families before the

         10  crisis exists so that we don't have to serve them by

         11  placing them in shelter, but that we help to address

         12  their particular needs at that time to avoid the

         13  crisis of homelessness from happening.

         14                 That comes back in fact, most folks

         15  now working to look at these issues endorse a

         16  community based approach.  You have to find the

         17  individuals in these families before the crisis

         18  happens, before they pack their bags, before they

         19  have responded to a notice of eviction thinking the

         20  story is over.  Give them information, help them

         21  with advocacy, provide them with services at home,

         22  in their community, so that the dislocation doesn't

         23  occur.              If the dislocation does occur,

         24  don't rip them away from those ties that are going

         25  to be the most successful in bringing them back to
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          2  permanency.

          3                 The other analysis that we have done,

          4  not presented to you in our submission, but

          5  available for discussion is that families who come

          6  into shelter, overwhelming want to go home.  They

          7  want to go back to the community they were living in

          8  before they entered shelter.  Even if their children

          9  have transferred to a community school in the

         10  District where the shelter is located, they want to

         11  transfer their children back to the community school

         12  in the community they came from.

         13                 We are making their challenge of

         14  overcoming homelessness more difficult by removing

         15  them far from their homes, in communities that are

         16  not familiar to them and making their travel

         17  challenges that much greater because they have to

         18  commute all the way back for their housing search

         19  and for their services.            CHAIRPERSON

         20  PERKINS: Clearly, no one wants to make life any more

         21  difficult for these families and clearly people, as

         22  much as possible, should be returned to their roots,

         23  but are there any statistics that you have, that you

         24  can share with us that correlate that these people

         25  coming back to the neighborhoods from which they
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          2  came before they were homeless, because again, the

          3  observation of the community when they see the

          4  individuals is, there is no appreciation of that

          5  fact.

          6                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: Well, a lot of --

          7  I'm sorry, were you finished?  I'm sorry.  A lot of

          8  that may result from the fact that the folks who are

          9  in shelters in communities right now are not from

         10  those communities.  They truly are folks from

         11  outside the community brought in during this

         12  traumatic period in their lives and put in a

         13  facility in a community that they are not familiar

         14  with.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Then, why are

         16  they only put in communities of color?

         17                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS:  The shelters

         18  that we --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  In Council

         20  Districts where the Council persons are of color, if

         21   -- see, I can appreciate you returning my neighbor

         22  back to my neighborhood.  And, in fact, I have no

         23  problem with you using my neighborhood, to some

         24  extent for those that may not necessarily come from

         25  that neighborhood.  But, I don't --  but, the
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          2  community doesn't understand why they all are coming

          3  to the same neighborhoods.  Now, the fact is that

          4  maybe demographically they all are considered poor,

          5  they are all considered people of color, families of

          6  color, but, must they all come to those communities?

          7    Is it those communities that must only bear the

          8  burden, bear the responsibility, bear the

          9  opportunity to house temporarily those who are

         10  homeless?  Is it the intention to, in terms of

         11  notification and therefore Fair Share to share

         12  across the fifty- one Council Districts of --

         13                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: Another piece of

         14  information I think will help to answer your

         15  question is that we did take a look at the

         16  geographic distribution of formerly homeless

         17  families who left shelter with Section 8 housing and

         18  we looked at the residents address to see where are

         19  folks choosing to return when they leave shelter,

         20  when they go to permanent housing.  That pattern was

         21  a distinctly different pattern from the non- shelter

         22  Section 8 utilization.  So we have Section 8

         23  utilization of formerly homeless clients and non-

         24  shelter, Section 8 utilization.  What we are looking

         25  for, what we are trying to understand and quite
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          2  frankly, I didn't just want to launch into

          3  neighborhood base placements, if that was not what

          4  shelter clients wanted.

          5                 I wanted to answer the question,

          6  where do people who are in shelter want to live if

          7  they had a permanent house.  And, so that's why we

          8  did the surveys that lead to that. The numbers that

          9  most of the folks that are in shelter want to return

         10  to their home community, return to their home

         11  schools and we looked at the Section 8 pattern.  It

         12  was a pattern that showed that individuals are

         13  overwhelmingly coming from South Bronx, Central

         14  Brooklyn and Northern Manhattan and overwhelmingly

         15  returning to their communities.  Those are important

         16  things that I think we have to think about, if we

         17  are trying to shape a service system that is going

         18  to best meet your constituents needs.

         19                 On the issue of the shelters, I do

         20  want to reiterate that the vast majority of Council

         21  Districts do have shelters in the Districts.  And, I

         22  want to say that we -- since I assumed this job,

         23  when I started my position, the agency policy was

         24  three- days notice, before shelter occupancy.  I

         25  struggled to increase that. I think we should
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          2  continue struggle to do better.  We have opened over

          3  2,000 units of family shelter in the 18 months I've

          4  been here. I am not proud of that fact.  I hope over

          5  the next 18 months, we can take 2,000 units out of

          6  the shelter system.  Over that time period in which

          7  record demand for shelter facilities, we've

          8  increased our notice to about an average of two

          9  weeks at this point.  In some cases because of the

         10  pressing needs for facilities, it has been less than

         11  two weeks, and other cases we have been able to give

         12  three or four weeks of notice.

         13                 We've also adopted a new practice

         14  that was learned in fact from the experience we had

         15  in opening the facility in Council Member Davis'

         16  District where the prior use -- the developer's use

         17  of the property was different than the shelter use.

         18  So we adopted a policy of asking each PD to review

         19  each property before we will pursue it as a shelter

         20  facility to ensure that there are no legal

         21  obstructions that would impair our ability to use

         22  the facility and to help them to ensure that if

         23  there is any past relief or abatement relief related

         24  to the facilities that is not for shelter use, then

         25  that would be discontinued.
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          2                 So those are two things that we've

          3  done as we have worked with you and learn from you,

          4  both individually and through Council Hearings to

          5  try to ensure that we are doing as good a job as we

          6  possibly can in communicating to communities and

          7  working with communities so that the facilities that

          8  are opened are done with as clear an understanding

          9  as possible of how we got to that point and what the

         10  facility will be used for.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you very

         12  much.  I just have one or two quick questions more

         13  then I want to allow my colleagues to weigh in on

         14  this from their perspective.

         15                 The bill creates a request, a

         16  requirement for notice.  Do you think that's an undo

         17  burden on DHS?  How do you think it would affect the

         18  self deciding process?

         19                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: We live in a

         20  very, very compassionate City and the compassion of

         21  the services that are being provided to those who

         22  are homeless are really not matched by anything else

         23  I don't believe.  And this body has had a large

         24  influence in shaping those services.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you for
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          2  saying something positive about this body's efforts

          3  in that regard.

          4                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS:  I will continue

          5  to say positive things about the efforts of this

          6  body in many regards.  The way that the obligations

          7  to provide shelter exists, because we won't tolerate

          8  anybody without a bed on a night that they are

          9  without one, is such that it is impossible to in a

         10  period of increasing demand when we have to meet the

         11  need on a daily basis, it is sometimes impossible to

         12  have the kind of advance notice that this bill

         13  requires.  And, I think would make it impossible to

         14  achieve.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: There are

         16  seventeen Districts in which have no shelter

         17  facilities whatsoever.  What are we going to do

         18  about that because clearly in terms of the Fair

         19  Share, they're being cheated so to speak.

         20                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: No community is

         21  targeted and no community is exempt, that's been --

         22  I've said that many times before this body, I say

         23  that to communities who I speak to as we attempt to

         24  ensure that there's as much information shared as

         25  possible.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: No, I don't mean

          3  to suggest that there is any malicious targeting or

          4  whatsoever on your part, I think that when you give

          5  proper notice that includes an opportunity for the

          6  community to know on a timely basis what's coming

          7  into their neighborhood, what the concentration of

          8  such facilities are in their neighborhood and what

          9  the distribution by comparison to other Districts

         10  there is of these facilities, it helps to alert not

         11  only the community, but also the administration to

         12  maybe some unfair, unintended imbalances that then

         13  will help us to make the necessary corrections.

         14                 So please don't in any way

         15  misunderstand to think that I think they are

         16  plotting to just "dump facilities in certain

         17  neighborhoods" and not put facilities in other

         18  neighborhoods.

         19                 But, now that we know that there are

         20  other neighborhoods that are not participating in

         21  the Fair Share, which obviously means that there is

         22  an overburden in some neighborhoods, how do you

         23  attempt to address that overburden that some

         24  neighborhoods are experiencing by comparison to

         25  other neighborhoods that are not experiencing
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          2  anything at all?

          3                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS:  The City's Fair

          4  Share requirements do not require an equal

          5  distribution of services across communities

          6  regardless of need.  I think the thing that I would

          7  focus on --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: You mean

          9  communities need, or City's need?

         10                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: I said

         11  communities need.  The thing that I would focus most

         12  on in the future in thinking about the distribution

         13  of shelter is whether or not the communities who are

         14  in need of shelter services can adequately

         15  accommodate the families from their communities.

         16  Such folks don't have the kind of disruption I was

         17  discussing earlier.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Let me ask you.

         19    Does the notice that you send, in now you've got

         20  it down to two or three weeks, does that include the

         21  concentration of facilities within the geographic

         22  area where the proposed site will take place?

         23                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: No.  It's simply

         24  the single facility that is supposed to be used, the

         25  size of the facility and the proposed use, and the
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          2  anticipated start- date.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you very

          4  much.

          5                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: You're welcome.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Council Member

          7  DeBlasio, Chairman DeBlasio.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: Thank you Chair

          9  Perkins.

         10                 Commissioner Gibbs you've been

         11  gracious over the last two years when we've offered

         12  any kind of criticism of DHS and I want to be

         13  equally gracious that you have offered a criticism

         14  of us.  Not having picked up on the dialogue off the

         15  last hearing the way we could have, I accept that

         16  criticism, but I would like to offer a friendly

         17  amendment that I don't by any means consider that a

         18  closed book.  I think we should have been quicker to

         19  do so. I think this summer, to some extent threw us

         20  off, but I would like to see that dialogue proceed

         21  in a setting where we can have a real give and take

         22  with members who are affected.  So, just wanted to

         23  let you know that.

         24                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS:  I would welcome

         25  that.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: Just a couple

          3  of questions. Oh, by the way we were joined by

          4  Council Member Chris Quinn and --           COUNCIL

          5  MEMBER QUINN: I just want to apologize for being

          6  late, I had Zoning across the street.  Sorry.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: A couple of

          8  quick questions. First of all, I appreciate very

          9  much your statement about focusing on prevention and

         10  getting the families before the homelessness and we

         11  talked about that a lot so I won't belabor it here.

         12                 I guess I want to make sure I am

         13  hearing you correctly.  Are you saying essentially

         14  the policy of the agency is to increasingly attempt

         15  that approach so that you don't have people going to

         16  the shelter system?

         17                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: That's absolutely

         18  the case and if it was just the agency's policy we

         19  would make small progress. We need to make great

         20  progress.  So we need to work with you, we need to

         21  work with the business sector, we need to work with

         22  non profits, we need virtually everybody in this

         23  City to commit to that so that we can avoid the kind

         24  of mass homelessness we have now.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: I want to also
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          2  say, and I appreciate it again the point you raised

          3  in your testimony that topics we talk about today

          4  are only one piece of the puzzle and the bigger core

          5  question is, why do we have this crisis and what do

          6  we do about it?

          7                 I do want to say now that we are

          8  going to be very interested in the future as to what

          9  we hope to be the benefits. Will the effect of the

         10  anti- eviction and the rental subsidy programs

         11  increasingly encumbering under the umbrella of your

         12  agency, something that we on the Committee thought

         13  would be a helpful step, we obviously believe to

         14  have to be implemented well, we obviously believe

         15  there has to be sufficient resources.  But, I think

         16  bluntly, we're going to be saying as we talked about

         17  in other conversations, we are going to be looking

         18  at, how is that playing out in real numbers and what

         19  additionally maybe do we have to do to keep

         20  increasing those numbers and reducing the burden on

         21  the system.

         22                 On the point you made about the

         23  connection between where folks come from, who become

         24  homeless, their desire to continue their connection

         25  to the community and ultimately to come back to
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          2  their community and live.  So, I understand that you

          3  tracked people leaving shelter into permanent

          4  housing, but I am a little unclear on the answer

          5  about the current percentages of folks who are

          6  placed in shelter near where they come from, as

          7  opposed to not near where they come from.  How do

          8  you in the process try and give preference, if you

          9  will, that people go to a shelter somewhat near

         10  where they come from?

         11                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: So the

         12  embarrassing situation of this, that is something I

         13  care deeply about, is that the performance of the

         14  agency has worsened in the last eighteen months. As

         15  the number of individuals who have come into shelter

         16  has grown tremendously and the demand on a daily

         17  basis has been more intense tremendously, our first

         18  priority is going to be getting each person to a

         19  shelter facility that night.  As the vacancies are

         20  fewer and the demand greater, our ability to match

         21  the community is lessened. I hope the transformation

         22  that we bring to the shelter system will relieve the

         23  pressure and I think in fact since January the

         24  family shelter population has stopped growing.  We

         25  have had -- we are basically flat.  And, that's not
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          2  because there are fewer people coming in.  It is

          3  because we are moving more people to permanent

          4  housing.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DE BLASIO:  To what

          6  extent can you take people currently in the shelter,

          7  which obviously is determined per immediate vacancy,

          8  and adjust in essentially and make exchanges from

          9  one shelter to another, is to get people closer to

         10  where they originally come from.  I mean, if that's

         11  a goal, to some extent do you have the flexibility

         12  and is there a priority to -- maybe it takes two

         13  steps, but to ultimately get people someplace for

         14  the longer term, they're nearer where they come

         15  from?

         16                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: Our process for

         17  moving forward on this will be with new shelter

         18  placements, rather than to try to transfer families

         19  while they are in shelter.  The disruption

         20  associated with another transfer has to be factored

         21  in, and our ability to manage the process.  What we

         22  are attempting --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON DE BLASIO: Is that

         24  microphone on?

         25                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: It's on, so maybe
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          2  something else happened.  Is this one working?

          3                 CHAIRPERSON DE BLASIO: There you go.

          4                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: Okay.  So, our

          5  effort will be with new shelter placements, rather

          6  than an effort to transfer families who are already

          7  in shelter.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON DE BLASIO: But, it will

          9  be a, for example, at intake it will be a priority

         10  with the case worker that home neighborhood has to

         11  be one of the things considered and whenever

         12  possible someone gets placed near the home

         13  neighborhood.

         14                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: Then the obvious

         15  exception is in the case of domestic violence.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DE BLASIO: Right. Okay.

         17  And just quickly on two other points.

         18                 One, I think we've seen some non-

         19  profits in New York and elsewhere engaged in what I

         20  think is the best practice of really trying to get

         21  into the community early and working with them,

         22  understand the concerns, make adjustments, often

         23  times maybe it is security, maybe it's the look of

         24  the facility, the community, folks being involved,

         25  being hired, whatever it may be.
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          2                 And, I guess what I like about this

          3  legislation, I think it is trying to move us in a

          4  direction of just holding a high standard in that

          5  regard, that more notice could in fact lead to a

          6  ultimately better reception.  I guess I would argue

          7  very bluntly that the -- I think we have all

          8  experienced in our communities that the first wave

          9  of reaction is often quite negative and after people

         10  have gotten that out of their systems, if the

         11  appropriate answers are given, the appropriate

         12  modifications are made, the people can often be

         13  quite accepting and positive.

         14                 So, I guess I'm (a) asking you, isn't

         15  there an argument for codifying some kind of notice

         16  procedure that allows for that cycle to happen, so

         17  that we hopefully end up in a better place.  And

         18  (b), I understand entirely that you don't know what

         19  you are going to need, until you need it.  Isn't

         20  there an argument therefore that makes sort of

         21  create a pool approach where if you know a facility

         22  might be necessary, there's an early notice given to

         23  the community, so again, let people get their

         24  concerns out, work through those concerns, and then

         25  if and when you need the facility, it's not always a
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          2  matter of we know we need this specific one, but we

          3  have a general list we think we are going to need,

          4  and therefore we are preparing for.

          5                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: I think the

          6  experience we've had in the last eighteen months may

          7  be unique, but it's the only one that we together

          8  have gone through because all of our workers, a lot

          9  of us is from that tenure.  The fact that the family

         10  shelter system has grown so dramatically, so quickly

         11  over the past three or four years has meant that the

         12  City, the agency is literally trying on a daily

         13  basis to keep ahead of it.

         14                 We don't want to see families

         15  sleeping at the EAU. We had a horrific, horrific

         16  summer, last summer with thousands of people, who

         17  had to wait there for shelter.  This summer we have

         18  had a dramatically different experience.  Not one

         19  family who came in before 10:00 o'clock at night

         20  stayed at the EAU that night.  Not one, compared to

         21  almost 5,000 last summer.  So, we have had such a

         22  dramatic difference, that I think as we continue to

         23  press on the kind of systemic reforms around

         24  prevention and permanency, then we won't be in such

         25  a bind, that leaves us at the point where we have to
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          2  within 24 hours notice sometimes, just get another

          3  facility available.

          4                 I think with that flexibility, then

          5  there is tremendous logic.  There is only good

          6  common sense in having as much notice as possible

          7  and having as much dialogue as required, requested,

          8  desired, necessary, whatever the term is you would

          9  want to use for that.  I've actually had a number of

         10  experiences with a number of you and your colleagues

         11  and particular facilities that I think were very

         12  positive. Some, where it didn't even involve a first

         13  negative reaction to the community.  And that's

         14  because I am in partnership, working with local

         15  elected officials and community leaders, the kind of

         16  outreach that you envision in thinking about this,

         17  happen.  That's something that we all want to

         18  achieve.  It's something I'm committed to.  Nobody

         19  wants to scare communities, nobody wants to harm

         20  communities, we all want to strengthen communities.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DE BLASIO:  I want to

         22  thank you.  I'm just going to turn back to Chair

         23  Perkins, but I just want to say, I thank you for

         24  that answer.  I want to celebrate and commend you

         25  for the progress in the EAU because we, there are so
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          2  many angles to this crisis, and we raise concerns

          3  about all the angles, but I think one of the ones

          4  that gripped all of us was the idea of people

          5  sleeping on the floor of the EAU and some of the

          6  members of the Committee went up to see that

          7  situation first hand last summer, and we are, you

          8  know, we were really deeply concerned and I think

          9  it's a huge step forward if we don't have that

         10  problem in these last few months.  Let's keep it

         11  that way.

         12                 I would just end by saying, I think

         13  the way you ended your response is crucial and I

         14  would just say as much as it is just a little

         15  counter- intuitive to say, let's make it the

         16  practice to give the early notification, because, I

         17  do think it's critical.  You do have a sense over

         18  the horizon of where your possible facilities might

         19  be. I'm not saying, you know what you are going to

         20  use exactly, when.  But, I think you have some sense

         21  of what your options might be.

         22                 I really do think the way to approach

         23  this legislation, is to say, look at it again as a

         24  kind of a pool approach.  You're looking at all your

         25  potential facilities downline.  You're giving early

                                                            46

          1  GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS AND GENERAL WELFARE

          2  notice to the community and particularly working

          3  with the local elected officials to make it a

          4  positive experience.  I actually think it will give

          5  you greater flexibility over time, because you'll

          6  find the way has been cleared when the proper

          7  answers have been given, when the proper approach

          8  has been taken to a shelter, your going to find it

          9  becomes easier as, not harder.  I think this

         10  legislation will be quite a great benefit in that

         11  manner.

         12                 Thank you.  Thank you Mr. Chair.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you.

         14  Council Member Comrie.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Thank you Mr.

         16  Chair.

         17                 Good morning Commissioner.

         18                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: Good morning.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Just a little

         20  background information.  The Department of Homeless

         21  Services, you alluded in your testimony is looking

         22  to eliminate homelessness and cut back the need for

         23  homeless housing.  How many programs do you actually

         24  administer that provides preventative services for

         25  our homeless?
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          2                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: Beginning on July

          3  1st of this year, DHS assumed responsible for the

          4  first prevention program that we have ever had

          5  responsibility for.  In the past, programs that

          6  focus on homeless prevention have been managed by

          7  agencies other than DHS and DHS has been responsible

          8  only for providing shelter.             COUNCIL

          9  MEMBER COMRIE: Right.

         10                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS:  By assuming

         11  responsibility for prevention, I hope that we can

         12  bring a more focused approach to this.  The

         13  knowledge that is in the shelters about the needs of

         14  folks and why they become homeless is great and we

         15  can tap into that and imperative to focus on this

         16  issue is not going to be felt as strongly by others

         17  than those who are daily managing the shelter

         18  operation.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: And, how large

         20  is this program that you just started in July?

         21                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS:  The Agency was

         22  started by assuming responsibility for the Legal

         23  Anti- Eviction Contract, which contract, a

         24  guesstimate here, probably about 20 different

         25  providers across the City and has a total contract
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          2  value of I think a little over $6 million dollars

          3  and I am grateful to the Council for your advocacy

          4  on that program in restoring funding that allows us

          5  to be in this position.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: So, you are

          7  aware that the Council has been a primary funder for

          8  those programs, when the Mayor's Office is

          9  traditionally whacked them out of the budget every

         10  year, to be blunt about it.  I know myself and some

         11  other members here consistently fought to make sure

         12  that legal services are maintained to prevent

         13  homeless and prevent eviction and to fight landlords

         14  that are legally trying to convert housing and we

         15  constantly push to make sure that money is kept in

         16  the budget into legal services and to protect the

         17  services and I hope that now that it's under your

         18  umbrella we won't have to worry about that in the

         19  budget anymore.  We can actually enhance monies and

         20  services to those needed programs.

         21                 Clearly, a large part of the problem

         22  with housing is the fact that a lot of people are

         23  being all of a sudden being given less than a 30-

         24  day notice for eviction and they don't know the

         25  process, they don't have any access to information

                                                            49

          1  GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS AND GENERAL WELFARE

          2  and you know, hopefully your agency can help get

          3  that information out in a broader scope than it can

          4  even -- unfortunately, a lot of people come to our

          5  office only after they have received or after they

          6  have decided and gotten frustrated and have left the

          7  facility.

          8                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: I just don't

          9  understand, they get that initial notice, thinking

         10  it's over, when they haven't even gone through the

         11  housing court process.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Right.

         13                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS:  As individuals,

         14  they don't know their rights as tenants.  I think

         15  the more that we are able to effectively marry the

         16  anti- eviction legal services where you have to have

         17  a housing court action already, with some other

         18  community based social services, where we can find

         19  people and educate them, so if they are getting

         20  behind on arrears because of a loss of a job, or a

         21  particular medical issue that stops all their

         22  resources, then we can target that so that we can

         23  assist them so that they don't get that notice of

         24  eviction.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Well, again,
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          2  I'm glad that you are taking those agencies under

          3  your umbrella.  I hope that those agencies are

          4  comfortable under your umbrella and you can expand

          5  their mission and scope.

          6                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS:  I don't think

          7  it's a matter of comfort, I think it's a matter of

          8  success.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Well,

         10  hopefully they will be more successful and able to

         11  provide more services.  I am going to change gears

         12  for one minute.

         13                 The shelters that you do have now,

         14  especially the larger capacity locations, how do you

         15  maintain their relationship to each of the

         16  communities around them?

         17                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS:  Each of the

         18  facilities are internal to the management of the

         19  facilities required to have Community Advisory

         20  Boards so that the shelter managers establish

         21  community advisory groups that consist of the

         22  community leaders. Quite frankly, it's most often

         23  those that have an active interest in ensuring that

         24  community issues are raised to the shelter and

         25  ensuring that the shelter's being responsive to
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          2  those issues.

          3                 So, it will most often include a

          4  member of the Community Board, it might include a

          5  neighboring residence association, it sometimes

          6  includes local business improvement districts.  The

          7  primary function, the primary intent there is to

          8  make sure that we have good information sharing.

          9                 More and more and over time it has

         10  proven itself to also be, and sometimes really

         11  overtaking that primary function, has been a great

         12  source of community support to the shelter.  So, it

         13  is often a vehicle for holiday parties, for after-

         14  school mentoring, for housing assistance and so it's

         15  both initially to ensure that community questions

         16  are answered and any sort of start- up concerns are

         17  addressed.  And, it is most often being involved

         18  into being that kind of partnership that where New

         19  Yorkers and communities do express their desire to

         20  be of help to those in need.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Well, what

         22  about shelters that are just totally out of sync

         23  with the community and the residences around them.

         24  Say a shelter that's abutting a totally residential

         25  facility or community with no grocery stores, no bus
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          2  service, no schools anywhere within a five block

          3  area to the facility.

          4                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS:  We continue to

          5  work very aggressively with any facility that has

          6  concerns to make sure that those concerns are

          7  addressed.  And, a number of different mechanisms

          8  are used.  So for instance, a facility that may not

          9  be close to a grocery store, may open a grocery

         10  store right in the basement of that facility.  A

         11  community that is close to one school district that

         12  doesn't have the capacity to absorb all of the

         13  children that might be in that new facility when it

         14  newly appears, will work to ensure that there is a

         15  distribution that meets the children's needs for

         16  education with the communities concern to ensure

         17  that their schools are not over saturated.  And so,

         18  we really deal with them on a one- by- one basis

         19  because they often are very unique.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Are you

         21  monitoring that in getting back to the CAC or the

         22  elected officials in the area where their successes

         23  or failures in their ability to control a facility,

         24  or make sure that facility is not having or it's

         25  leaving undo harm on the communities around it?
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          2                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: We routinely --

          3  I'll be honest, I personally do not go out to these

          4  monthly Community Advisory Board meetings, I

          5  obviously couldn't attend all of them.  The agency

          6  staff is represented at those meetings, fairly

          7  routinely and always if we are requested.  We are

          8  also the liaison for the individual shelters, if

          9  they need the support of another City agency, like

         10  sanitation or transportation, or police department,

         11  or the Mayor's CAU, Community Assistance Unit, also

         12  work very closely with us to assure that.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Are there any

         14  large such type facilities that you feel totally

         15  frustrated about your ability to manage the

         16  surrounding communities around them, to ensure that

         17  the community would want to be a partner with that

         18  facility in the long term?

         19                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: At this point no.

         20    In the past eighteen months of opening facilities

         21  there has been a number that we, that I really took

         22  really extraordinary efforts to manage the opening

         23  of facilities, to get the facility management in

         24  place, to have the community dialogue happen to meet

         25  very legitimate community concerns about
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          2  transportation and services and engagement of

          3  clients and at this point those efforts have been

          4  very successful.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Are there any

          6  facilities that you feel are -- their inherent

          7  capacity to provide real cooking opportunities or

          8  real socialization opportunities for their clients,

          9  after you have inspected them and you've actually

         10  had clients in them, have met your capacity or your

         11  basic needs services, for a family that is in a

         12  shelter?

         13                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: I'm not entirely

         14  sure that I understand your question.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Well, maybe I

         16  had better back it up.  What is the basic needs

         17  requirements for a family, a family shelter, a

         18  family that is in a shelter?  What do you expect

         19  that shelter to provide, or a large facility to

         20  provide?

         21                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: But, shelter

         22  facilities are very different for single adults

         23  compared to families.  Single adult facilities are

         24  dormitory style, where eight to twenty or thirty

         25  individuals will share a room and have shared
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          2  sleeping arrangements and congregate dining.

          3                 Family shelter facilities are private

          4  sheltered units so each family has a private, locked

          5  sheltered unit, most often with their own bathroom

          6  and their own kitchen.  There are some facilities

          7  that have shared kitchens with their own bath, and

          8  some facilities that have shared kitchens and baths.

          9    Those tend to be smaller facilities and the over-

         10  all characteristic of a family shelter facility is

         11  apartment like in nature.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: So, in other

         13  words, you do have some family facilities where they

         14  have to share kitchens and share other facilities or

         15  joint facilities?  And, that's within the scope of

         16  your contract requirements with the City?  What is

         17  the level of sharing that is allowed?

         18                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: There are

         19  different facilities, some of the facilities are

         20  City run facilities that were grandfathered from

         21  when the current standards were created.  The goal

         22  is to have a private apartment style unit for each

         23  family.  So the ones that are without kitchens and

         24  baths are grandfathered from before the standard was

         25  adopted.
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          2                 I would comment that I believe that

          3  those facilities are just as strong and as effective

          4  as those with a full apartment with bath and

          5  kitchen.  The ability of the City to continue to

          6  meet the shelter mandates with the requirement of

          7  bathrooms and kitchens, continues to define the

          8  nature of housing that we need to look at for the

          9  purpose of shelter.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Oh, okay.

         11  Just one other or two other questions.  Do you think

         12  that siting these facilities, especially the

         13  facilities that are brought to you by private

         14  individuals, for the three weeks notice, is enough

         15  time to mitigate a community's concerns or give a

         16  community an opportune time to come up with another

         17  suggestion, or would you agree that we do need to

         18  give those communities more time to come up with

         19  alternative suggestions, if possible?

         20                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: I would be very

         21  interested in any alternative suggestions that any

         22  Council Member has for its shelter facilities and

         23  would immediately explore any of them.  Our reaching

         24  out to communities when we are about to move forward

         25  on opening a facility, is for the purpose of
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          2  ensuring the successful opening of the facility.

          3  Certainly if a different site is brought to our

          4  attention that would satisfy the immediate demands,

          5  we could take that into consideration and the

          6  overall demands for shelter would really determine

          7  whether or not we could consider that option.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Do you expect

          9  your demands to increase or decrease this year, this

         10  winter season?

         11                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: The demands for

         12  shelter, new people knocking on the door, continues

         13  to increase.  From 2001 to 2002 we had a twenty- six

         14  percent increase in demands for shelter. In 2002

         15  compared to 2003 another ten percent on top of that

         16  twenty six percent.  So, it didn't stay at

         17  historical highs, it actually got higher.  Demand is

         18  increasing.

         19                 How much shelter do we need?  It

         20  depends on how long folks who are in shelter, stay

         21  in shelter.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Have you been

         23  able to reduce that time, that they stay in shelter?

         24    You said earlier in your comments that you are

         25  actually moving out people to find permanent
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          2  housing.  Has that period increased or shortened?

          3                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: The families, the

          4  size of the family shelter system have stabilized.

          5  We have been at about 9,200 families since January.

          6  Looking forward, I hope it will decrease. But, that

          7  will require a lot of work and effort.  It will

          8  require even better work on the permanency.  Even

          9  shorter length of stay. More folks leaving shelter

         10  to permanent housing quicker.  And, it will require

         11  that we change this dynamic of an ever- increasing

         12  number of New Yorkers, of your constituents, who are

         13  coming into shelter because they are not being

         14  offered options.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay. All

         16  right.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you very

         18  much Council Member Comrie.  We are going to have a

         19  round two, if you don't mind.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: I don't mind.

         21  Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you very

         23  much.  I wanted before we go forward acknowledge the

         24  presence of Council Member Larry Seabrook.

         25  Congratulations on your victory in the Democratic
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          2  Primary, as well as congratulations to Council

          3  Member Charles Barron.

          4                 I also want to acknowledge the

          5  brother of Bill DeBlasio, who is here with us,

          6  Steve, all the way from Seattle, shows you how the

          7  issue has residence so to speak.

          8                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: And, maybe he can

          9  take some lessons about the New York City system

         10  back to Seattle, because I understand your

         11  struggling with your own.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Now, we would

         13  like to hear from Council Member Peter Vallone, Jr.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Thank you

         15  Chair's Perkins and DeBlasio and DeBlasio's brother,

         16  for having this hearing today on this important

         17  topic.  I agree that all communities should bear the

         18  City's burdens, but we should keep in mind that

         19  different communities today, bear different types of

         20  burdens.  In fact, my community, there is the burden

         21  of four huge carcinogens spewing filthy power plants

         22  right now, so there are other factors that need to

         23  be taken -- but other Districts have absolutely none

         24  so there are other factors that need to be taken

         25  into consideration.
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          2                 Ms. Gibbs, thank you very much for

          3  honest and forthright testimony today.  I am one of

          4  the sponsors of this bill and I believe there are

          5  over thirty at this point.  So, it appears at that

          6  some version of this bill is likely to pass.  So, as

          7  usual we like to work with the administration.

          8                 Are there any changes that you would

          9  recommend to this bill.

         10                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS:  I am not really

         11  prepared to discuss those.  I think overall we could

         12  probably all agree on a healthy notification and

         13  community dialogue process.  We could probably all

         14  agree on what that should be and we could agree that

         15  that's a good thing to do.  As long as this agency

         16  is under the obligation to ensure that we have

         17  shelter for every individual who needs it that day,

         18  our ability to live up to those expectations, is

         19  limited.  And that is the fundamental issue that is

         20  really presented in the struggle to provide advance

         21  notification and dialogue.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  We are also

         23  aware that you are under some amazingly strict

         24  judicial constraints and mandates, which you need to

         25  incorporate into your testimony.  But, we would like
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          2  to work with you on tailoring this bill because,

          3  like I said, something will pass, and it's better to

          4  work with you, than without you.  So, thank you for

          5  your testimony today.

          6                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Thank you very

          8  much Council Member Vallone.  Let me just point out

          9  your observation, with respect to your District, but

         10  in general, the need to take into consideration

         11  other facilities that may be in a particular

         12  neighborhood is very, very important observation.

         13  And, that's why notification is so important,

         14  because in that notification there will be

         15  acknowledgment of other types of facilities that

         16  would have a bearing on whether or not the community

         17  would recommend or would somehow want to see

         18  something else done.  So, I think the whole

         19  notification in the Fair Share process very much

         20  require an analysis of what other types of

         21  facilities are in a particular neighborhood that

         22  might have a bearing on whether or not a particular

         23  facility should be sited.  So, I thank you very much

         24  for that observation.

         25                 Now we hear from Council Member
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          2  Philip Reed.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  Thank you very

          4  much Mr. Chair and both Chairs.  I appreciate the

          5  opportunity to have this discussion.

          6                 Good morning Commissioner.

          7                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS:  Good morning.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  I was struck by

          9  your comment early in your opening comment. I think

         10  everybody at this table is working to try to solve

         11  this problem.  It is an epidemic.  In some ways I

         12  think that your hands are tied.  I am not supportive

         13  of the Court ruling that requires us to house

         14  people.  I think there needs to be a review of that.

         15    I think there needs to be some State assistance

         16  significantly.

         17                 But, I do think some of your comments

         18  are also fairly disingenuous.  And, while we are

         19  trying to be sympathetic, some of it just smacked of

         20  righteousness that worried me and concerned me.

         21                 The example that we have in here of

         22  sitings is in my District, and there are some

         23  absences even on this map, the radius issue, and I

         24  think that the Agency known as CIDR, in fact has

         25  increased.  I am also noticing that some of this
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          2  information goes back to 1999, so we don't really

          3  have updated information.  If we look at some of the

          4  statistics, this letter is from 02, but there is

          5  other information in here, for instance this

          6  breakdown you have given us is from 1999.  Well,

          7  this is almost the end of 03.  So, --

          8                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: Maybe we should

          9  review some of the documents.  I can't see it too

         10  clearly, that doesn't look one of those things I

         11  submitted last week, and --

         12                  COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Okay.  Well, I

         13  just think that we ought to try to have as timely

         14  information as possible --

         15                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: Absolutely.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Your agency has

         17  always been helpful when we have called,

         18  particularly Deputy Commissioner Muscalli, but I

         19  still go back to your comments which --

         20                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: And, I assure you

         21  I could Council Member.  We have recently created a

         22  website that is accessible by everybody, the members

         23  of the public, that provides extensive data about

         24  our system, the number of clients, the number of

         25  facilities, the number of beds, the number of
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          2  buildings, and it is available.  We update it on a

          3  daily basis as any change happens. It is available

          4  to anyone who wants to take --

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: And, that is

          6  available on your website?

          7                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: Yes.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: The concern that

          9  I have, and I think Council Member Comrie first

         10  comments were fairly in terms of just the budget.

         11  If you're saying that we need to do everything to

         12  keep people in place, I don't know any Council

         13  Member's office that isn't overwhelmed with trying

         14  to offer assistance to people who are in some state

         15  of dispossession.  Whether it's the first notice,

         16  the second notice, or in fact in a District like

         17  mine, where we have the largest number of people who

         18  live in NYCHA Housing, they're being put out of

         19  NYCHA, which has a whole new and separate set of

         20  regulations.  I'm not sure that the left hand and

         21  the right hand, meaning your's and Chairman

         22  Hernandez are having a conversation. I know vast

         23  number of apartments in East Harlem that are in

         24  NYCHA that are just empty.  So, there doesn't seem

         25  to be a significant amount of coordination in terms
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          2  of can we find apartments.  If these people are from

          3  East Harlem, then lets put them in East Harlem.

          4  But, we have hundreds, hundreds of apartments in

          5  NYCHA, that are just sitting there, waiting for

          6  somebody.

          7                 Now, I know you have got Federal

          8  regulations and a whole lot of complications, but,

          9  don't ask us to help you when many of our officers

         10  are sitting there everyday, trying to make people

         11  understand that doesn't make sense.  They know for a

         12  fact that there are apartments and they can't move

         13  into them.  So, you said to us today, you need our

         14  help.  We're trying to offer it.  The Mayor and City

         15  Planning just last month up- zoned fifty- five

         16  blocks of East Harlem.  The Mayor in his comment

         17  said, that this was the largest rezoning to have

         18  happened in the City, fifty- five blocks. For what?

         19  For development.  Not one dime was put forward for

         20  low income housing.  In fact, I had to stop the

         21  process from happening before -- until we could get

         22  a commitment of $12 million to develop low- income

         23  housing.

         24                 So, the Council is trying to help

         25  solve this problem.  So, it's just a little
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          2  frustrating to hear you say, that you need our help,

          3  when we're giving it.  And, we can't find the

          4  coordination that is required in these agencies.  We

          5  also don't find the coordination when we are working

          6  with some of these smaller programs that HPD has out

          7  here, that are in fact also helping to displace

          8  people.

          9                 Now, I don't think that the City has

         10  the resources, certainly not the dollars, to solve

         11  this problem all by itself.  I understand that.  We

         12  certainly have seen a total abandonment of

         13  affordable housing on the Federal level and to a

         14  lesser extent the State level.  And, that's a

         15  political leadership issue that hopefully will be

         16  addressed in an election cycle.

         17                 But, we are faced with it every day.

         18  We have in our communities welcomed overnight

         19  shelters, half- way permanent shelters, I mean the

         20  array of them is so staggering that most people

         21  can't understand it.  So, I now have been in the

         22  Council five years, almost six.  Your agency has

         23  never come to me and said Council Member Reed, we

         24  would like to sit down and look at the siting issues

         25  that we have here.  What you have done is, you have
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          2  been very helpful in saying to us, Phil, this thing

          3  is coming in twenty minutes, it's coming in three

          4  days.  I think the most I ever got was a week's

          5  notice and what you have done of course is to take

          6  up, which is a smart thing to do, available

          7  privately owned space. So, there is no review

          8  process that happens.  So you just simply tell us

          9  when something has happened.  In fact I think CIDR

         10  has now expanded their site on Third Avenue.  Am I

         11  right about that?

         12                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS:  I'm sorry, I'm

         13  not familiar with that.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Well, I think

         15  Deputy Commissioner Muscalli knows what I am talking

         16  about.  Haven't they expanded the number of beds

         17  that they have there on Third Avenue?

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MUSCALLI: That's

         19  not CIDR.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: But, David, one

         21  of them has expanded.

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MUSCALLI: But,

         23  that's not CIDR.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Okay, but one of

         25  them has expanded.  I can't keep up with it.
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          2                 So, I just find your comments really

          3  disingenuous. You know perfectly well my office, and

          4  I think most of my colleagues, have tried to be

          5  supportive.  If you'd like, I'd be happy to give you

          6  a letter, and I will work with the Community Board,

          7  I fear our District Manager here, to talk about what

          8  we think are easy, doable ways to help solve the

          9  problem, to help keep these families in the

         10  community.

         11                 On the West side, I now have three

         12  over- nights. And, I don't even want to discuss what

         13  is happening in East Harlem. So, I want to continue

         14  to work with you, as we have done, but please don't

         15  come back here and tell us that you are -- it sounds

         16  like Joan of Arc showed up today.

         17                 We're all trying to solve this

         18  problem.  But we also are trying to rebuild a

         19  community.  So, when I have this dialogue about what

         20  125th Street and Lexington Avenue looks like, with

         21  four methadone clinics, the bus from Randall's

         22  Island, the bus from Rikers Island, all dropping

         23  people off at exactly the same intersection, and all

         24  the homeless shelters and the City says to me, but

         25  we can't help you with that, the community begins to
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          2  become very, very suspicious of the City's motives.

          3                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: Council Member

          4  may I say --

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: We do end up in

          6  a NIMBY situation.

          7                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: So, Council

          8  Member I think if my comments appeared self-

          9  righteous or disingenuous, I certain apologize. I

         10  would also say it would have been easier to come

         11  here today and not say them.  And, I didn't say them

         12  lightly.  And, I said them because I believe that if

         13  we are going to do something different in the City,

         14  about serving the people, who are about to become

         15  homeless, I can't do it alone and the Mayor's office

         16  can't do it alone, it requires all of us.  And, I am

         17  begging you to help me focus on that issue.  And,

         18  I'm sorry if it came off in any way offensive, I'm

         19  asking for your partnership and help on that issue.

         20  I don't think either of us enjoy this.

         21                 I don't appreciate that you have to

         22  respond to your community constantly about the fear

         23  that communities have about shelter openings.  It's

         24  not something that I want to see each of you need to

         25  struggle with.  I believe that you care deeply about
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          2  your constituents and better serving their needs.  I

          3  don't think that we are serving anybody well by

          4  making a bigger and bigger and bigger shelter

          5  system.  And, I truly want to work with you to

          6  change the entire dynamic, not to have a better

          7  communication about opening shelters.  We need to

          8  have places for you to refer all those constituents

          9  who knock on your door and right now you have a

         10  great sense of frustration about an inability of

         11  helping them.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Well, I

         13  appreciate that you recognize that.  I think you

         14  know, we are trying in our office to find shelter

         15  for people who are one step from homeless.  And, if

         16  we could get help from the administration in the

         17  coordination of various programs that are out there,

         18  that might help alleviate some of the problem.

         19                 But, I don't think the situation in

         20  8th Council District is any more unique than most of

         21  my colleagues, except that in the size and scope

         22  perhaps.  But, you know I have got two families that

         23  I am working with right now that it's not a

         24  unfamiliar situation, where I'm just about to

         25  recommend that they put themselves in the homeless
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          2  system in order to find appropriate housing, because

          3  the situation they live in now in intolerable. And,

          4  they would be better off homeless for a shorter

          5  period of time than they are trying to work through

          6  this system.

          7                 So, again, if you are making an offer

          8  to try to coordinate those services.  If you're

          9  making an offer that your office will say to the

         10  Mayor and the City Planning, listen, let's not

         11  upscale things and not put any money in the

         12  neighborhood to build low and affordable housing,

         13  I'm happy to take up that offer. We have continued

         14  to work with your office and I guess, you know,

         15  assuming that I get reelected in November, I'm going

         16  to have another two years to try to do that.

         17                 I want to try and find ways. You can

         18  see me on the steps of City Hall.  Every time I see

         19  you I tell you I am going to try to support this

         20  program if we have dialogues.  But, please don't

         21  come here and say, Oh, we need your help, when we

         22  offered it several times and nobody can understand,

         23  is there a coordination --              Let me ask

         24  you a question here.  Does anybody in your

         25  department have a relationship with NYCHA?
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          2                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: We plea with

          3  NYCHA at a meeting that focuses exactly on the very

          4  difficult issue of coordination for the purpose of

          5  trying to improve our coordination.  I would note

          6  that NYCHA has doubled its resources that it has

          7  provided to house formerly homeless in NYCHA

          8  apartments and that's been a big part of our

          9  success.  It was a big part, perhaps the largest

         10  part of the reason that we didn't have families

         11  sleeping at the EAU this summer, because we placed

         12  700 families in July alone and that is a lot of hard

         13  work.  I have had really tremendous, tremendous

         14  cooperation.

         15                 At the same time, any time that you

         16  have a Governmental Services, that service that

         17  involves multiple agencies, the work of coordination

         18  is unending.  You can't ever be done because next

         19  week something new may come up that creates a

         20  problem.  And, you've just got to keep to it and

         21  that's exactly what we've been doing, we meet NYCHA,

         22  HPD, HRA, OMB, Corp. Counsel we are all together

         23  meeting every week, going over all of the issues

         24  that we are trying to address.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  So, are you
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          2  prepared to give each one of the Council Members a

          3  contact in your office other than the ever diligent

          4  Deputy Commissioner here, who understands our

          5  Districts and where we think there should be some

          6  assistance in coordination?

          7                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: I don't know that

          8  I have fifty one staff people to commit to that but

          9  I certainly --

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  Well, you have

         11  seventeen Districts that don't have homeless

         12  shelters so, you don't need fifty- one.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Council Member

         14  Reed, I am going to have to ask you to defer to the

         15  second round, after she responds to your comment.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Okay.

         17                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS:  And, I

         18  appreciate your recognition of Bob Muscalli and his

         19  office, they really do make great efforts to be as

         20  responsive as we possibly can.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: So, the answer

         22  to my question is that I can continue to --

         23                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS:  I am more than

         24  happy to think of options to improve any concerns

         25  you have about any communication issues and how to

                                                            74

          1  GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS AND GENERAL WELFARE

          2  work better in with your community.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Thank you.

          4  Thank you Mr. Chair.  I hope that we continue to

          5  have this.  I've got another appointment, but I will

          6  be back.  Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you very

          8  much Council Member Reed.  I also want to thank the

          9  Commissioner for her apology for her opening remarks

         10  that might have been construed in a way that she did

         11  not mean them to be construed.

         12                 I want to now turn to Council Member

         13  Charles Barron, but first I want to acknowledge the

         14  presence of Council Member Gail Brewer.  Council

         15  Member Barron.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: You know, you

         17  can apologize all you want.  You have a lot of nerve

         18  to come here this morning with this as though we are

         19  not working hard to avoid homelessness. You need to

         20  talk to your boss the Mayor who has an affordable

         21  housing program for the middle- class and nothing

         22  for the lower income people of this City.  You

         23  should start there.

         24                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: Yes, like I'm

         25  doing my job -- --            COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:
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          2  Don't cut me off.  I have to sit and listen to you.

          3  Don't cut me off.

          4                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: I'm doing my job

          5  honestly and- I have been respectful --

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Don't cut me

          7  off.  Don't cut me off.

          8                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: And I have been

          9  extremely respectful -- expect the same.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: I have to sit

         11  and listen to you. Don't cut me off.

         12                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: And I expect the

         13  same.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Don't cut me

         15  off.  Don't cut me off.

         16                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: I expect the

         17  same. These are not easy --

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Don't cut me

         19  off.  Don't cut me off.  Don't cut me off. I had to

         20  sit here and listen to you, and it wasn't easy.

         21                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: These are not

         22  easy --             COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Well

         23  don't cut me off.  Don't cut me off.

         24                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: These are not

         25  easy meetings.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Don't cut me

          3  off.  Don't cut me off.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Council Member

          5  and Commissioner, what --

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Tell her not

          7  to talk.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: What I would

          9  like to do is to have you --

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: She always

         11  cuts somebody off.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: I would like to

         13  have you have a dialogue with each other one at a

         14  time.  So, Council Member do you have a question?

         15  Do you have a comment?

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Yes, before I

         17  was rudely interrupted, I was saying you need to

         18  speak to your boss, the Mayor, whose affordable

         19  housing program is not affordable for low income

         20  people.  It houses and builds new homes for middle-

         21  class, upper middle- class people, more than the

         22  neediest people in this City.  That's number one.

         23  And, number two, we wouldn't have to have a hearing

         24  on notice, if you would give us notice.  The reason

         25  why we have to have a bill and a hearing and all of
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          2  that is because you haven't been good at doing that

          3  in a respectful way.  And, thirdly, notably in my

          4  District, the job that your agency is doing is

          5  outrageous.  Here we had a complex five buildings,

          6  and we are working developing a tenant association,

          7  we had a private landlord that was ripping off the

          8  tenants, not doing well by the tenants. I have a new

          9  owner coming in, tells us, that we are going to

         10  evict all of these tenants from permanent housing

         11  because we have connections in the Department of

         12  Homeless where we'll put them on the list and then

         13  they can come right back and turn some of the

         14  buildings into transitional tier two housing so they

         15  can get $3,000 a month instead of $900 a month, with

         16  your help, your agency's help.  We have them in

         17  Court, you ignore that, still haven't called us,

         18  haven't met with anybody about it.  I asked Chairman

         19  DeBlasio to intervene and talk to you about it.  We

         20  still have heard nothing from you office in this

         21  case.  A private developer, using our agency -- and

         22  we are going to investigate that one way or another.

         23  You're not going to get away with letting private

         24  developers evict people from permanent housing,

         25  creating homelessness, get on the list, so they can
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          2  bring them back into tier two transitional housing

          3  and make $3,000 a month instead of Section 8 and

          4  $800 or $900 a month.  That's a scam and your agency

          5  is involved in it and we're going to get to the

          6  bottom of this.  You don't even have to respond to

          7  the question, because you dance pretty well.  You

          8  dance as well as some politicians I know in this

          9  City.  Thank you very much Mr. Chairman.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Council Member

         11  DeBlasio.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON DE BLASIO: Thank you

         13  Chair Perkins.  I'm sorry.  I have one follow up

         14  question Commissioner from the previous discussion

         15  and it refers to permanent housing.

         16                 I just want to get an understanding

         17  from you.  When I was talking to you before, earlier

         18  in the testimony you raised the point about the

         19  focus of your strategy, of course increasing on the

         20  preventive side to reduce demand and then to try and

         21  make the process speed up for getting people the

         22  permanent housing, which I believe you have had some

         23  success with and then we all assume, increase the

         24  supply of permanent housing.  So, my question is,

         25  two parts.  First, do you feel that we are on a
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          2  track to get the supply of permanent housing to

          3  expand more rapidly than the increasing demand in

          4  homelessness, even just for these coming years, do

          5  you feel despite the economy, the budget crisis,

          6  etcetera that we are sort of getting ahead

          7  numerically.  And, second, do you see a more

          8  positive community reaction when you are dealing

          9  with permanent housing, than when you are dealing

         10  with transitional housing?                   COMMISSIONER

         11  GIBBS: My agency does not develop permanent housing,

         12  I am responsible for shelter services.  I think the

         13  Mayor's $3 billion dollar, sixty- five thousand unit

         14  housing development strategy speaks for itself in

         15  the direction the City is going in addressing

         16  housing.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DE BLASIO: Let me just,

         18  in terms of the coordination that you spoke about

         19  earlier with other agencies, but I take it, because

         20  I know you are very numerical.  Is there some kind

         21  of charting, of when affordable units will come on

         22  line or permanent units that you can tap into on the

         23  back end of your process, not just any units, but

         24  ones that will be available to you, whether they are

         25  new, whether they are HPD has created them from old
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          2  stock, whatever they may be, Section 8 units, is

          3  there a tracking and what do you think -- are we

          4  half- way even point, are we sort of struggling to

          5  get the break- even, are we ahead of the game.

          6                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: What we are

          7  struggling to do right now is to make use of the

          8  permanent housing resources that are available to my

          9  department.  And, last year we did not use all those

         10  resources and we are at risk of not using them all

         11  again this year.  But, we are doing much better than

         12  we did last year and I hope we are able to improve

         13  the work associated with moving clients from shelter

         14  to permanent housing so that we can say that we did

         15  not send back resources that were made available to

         16  us by Mayor Bloomberg.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DE BLASIO: So, you are

         18  hopeful for the coming year that there will be more

         19  stream- line utilization.

         20                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: Very hopeful.  We

         21  are seeing progress on a weekly basis.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON DE BLASIO: And, I know we

         23  don't govern the actual implantation of people once

         24  they are in the permanent housing of how that plays

         25  out, but, do you believe on a common sense level
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          2  that broadly speaking communities are more receptive

          3  to permanent housing.

          4                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: I'm sorry, I just

          5  have not had experience working with communities in

          6  permanent housing.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DE BLASIO: Okay.  Thank

          8  you.  Thank you Mr. Chairman.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you very

         10  much Commissioner for your testimony.  Two quick

         11  questions.

         12                 In the notification of the RFPs that

         13  go out, are these notifications going to all

         14  Community Boards, City Council Members, borough

         15  presidents.

         16                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: The notification

         17  requirement is a requirement for the proposal maker,

         18  to notify the community on the date that they send

         19  DHS a proposal for site development. So, the not-

         20  for profit will send the community notice at the

         21  same time as they mail the notice to DHS, the

         22  proposal to DHS, the provider shelter service.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: So, the

         24  responder to your RFP?

         25                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: RFP, that's
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          2  correct.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Has to send it

          4   -- some sort of community notice.

          5                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: The purpose there

          6  is that the community partner is going to be the

          7  shelter provider.  The individual who is running the

          8  shelter is the organization that the community is

          9  going to have the routine communication with and

         10  work together with.  It is part of our expectation

         11  of shelter providers that they have that kind of

         12  communication.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Does the

         14  Community Board get notified by you, that they are

         15  sending out an RFP to so called potential providers.

         16    In other words do you announce to the Boards, to

         17  the elected officials to the borough presidents?  To

         18  whom do you make such an announcement in terms of

         19  your notification?

         20                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: The agency has an

         21  open- ended RFP so that there are not RFPs routinely

         22  issued to request new shelter.  The open ended RFP

         23  is a sort of standing RFP that allows proposals to

         24  come forward at any point that a facility is

         25  available.  And so the notification comes from the
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          2  person who is bringing the facility forward at the

          3  point that they bring it forward.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: At the point

          5  that someone brings forward a facility, a

          6  notification goes out.

          7                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: If a proposal is

          8  being made, through the open-ended RFP.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Okay. My concern

         10  is that it will probably be helpful from a

         11  notification point of view, that Community Boards,

         12  elected officials, et cetera know when requests for

         13  proposals are going out.  Because then it will alert

         14  them that there is a potential provider or potential

         15  facility that will be opened up, or considered for

         16  opening in your neighborhood.

         17                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: I see what you

         18  are asking. That's not a typical scenario for our

         19  agency, although we do sometimes -- I'm sorry that

         20  it is a little bit complicated here. Because of the

         21  City's procurement rules, you can't have a 100 year

         22  contract with the City.  After a certain period of

         23  time a facility will need to be re- RFP'd to allow

         24  open competition for that service.  If the facility

         25  is owned by the provider, which it most often is,
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          2  then we are RFP'g for a service without a facility

          3  attached and the proposal that comes in would have

          4  to identify the facility.  If it's a City owned

          5  facility, then we are RFP'g for a service in a

          6  facility.  In most cases, when we release an RFP

          7  like that, it is really asking the question, should

          8  this provider stay in this facility providing this

          9  service.  And, it allows new competitors to provide

         10  options and alternatives.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: In that

         12  scenario, it the Community Board made aware?

         13                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS:  At the release

         14  of the RFP I can follow up for you.  I'm not sure

         15  what the community notice requirements are and that

         16  would be whatever the City's Social Service

         17  Contracts community notification requirements would

         18  be.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Okay.  But, you

         20  do see it being helpful when communities know that

         21  RFP's are going out related to their specific

         22  neighborhoods, so they go out City wide.

         23                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: Again, it depends

         24  on the service.  For instance, we just RFP'd the

         25  City's Drop- in Centers services entered into

                                                            85

          1  GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS AND GENERAL WELFARE

          2  contracts in July.  That was a City- wide

          3  solicitation and whole negotiation renewal process

          4  and so that is different than if you have one

          5  facility in particular that's in question, so really

          6  it runs the gambit.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Last but not

          8  least, how does DHS define saturation or undo

          9  concentration?

         10                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: I don't have a

         11  definition for that.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Okay.  Thank you

         13  very much.

         14                 I appreciate again your attendance

         15  and look forward to working very closely with you.

         16                 Oh, I am sorry, thank you very much

         17  for reminding me Council Member Seabrook.

         18  Appreciate that.  Council Member Seabrook.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK:  Thank you

         20  very much Mr. Chairman.  Good afternoon

         21  Commissioner.

         22                 Here is a couple of quick questions.

         23  What is your objection to this bill?

         24                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS:  As we discussed

         25  earlier, the objection is not to community notice
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          2  and community conversation. Quite the opposite.  I

          3  am very committed to that.  I think that is really

          4  crucial in having as effective a process as

          5  possible.  The challenge is that we don't always

          6  have the luxury of time in a City where we commit

          7  that no one will be left without a home, not even

          8  one night.  That is a value we all share and when

          9  you have an extraordinary increase in demand for

         10  shelter services and you literally need a facility

         11  next week, tomorrow, as has been my experience

         12  several time, you can't comply with both

         13  requirements.

         14  You simply can't achieve both.  We all have to make

         15  a decision. You have to have one or the other or you

         16  have to have something in between.  This is just a

         17  circumstance where you can't have both.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: So, you are

         19  saying that there's a logistical question in terms

         20  of an emergency that might happen that you are not

         21  able to do the notification.  How do you notify the

         22  contractors, etcetera?  There is a bureaucracy that

         23  allows for contracts to be signed, contracts to be

         24  let, contracts to be reviewed, so there is a

         25  reviewing.  Nothing happens in this City in twenty-
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          2  four hours.

          3                 So, I am just saying, there has to be

          4  that whole process and signed off and the

          5  Comptroller signs and then back, and budget and

          6  everything else.  And, there is just the

          7  notification aspect and I would hope that can be

          8  accommodated.  Because I came here today, and I

          9  always felt that everyone should have their fair

         10  share.  I don't have a problem with that and the

         11  need to do that.              But notice is very

         12  important because out of concern that there is a

         13  homeless facility that is going to be added a few

         14  blocks from my office, that I was never notified

         15  about -- 211th Street.  Some community person called

         16  me and told me this is going to happen.  So I said,

         17  I'm not certain of that.  We're meeting with the

         18  Commissioner in the morning and I will find out if

         19  that is so. And, I think that's the situation you

         20  find other members in.  I don't have a problem with

         21  accepting that in the community.  But, I have a

         22  problem when I'm not notified and the embarrassing

         23  situation that someone calls me and asks me about

         24  this and I am their City Council person and do not

         25  know.
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          2                 We have shelters in my District now

          3  that I visit and I talk to people and I don't have a

          4  problem with that.  But, I have a problem with the

          5  lack of notice about this issue.  I don't see it as

          6  a cumbersome situation, that it should trigger off,

          7  that when you send out for any of these contracts

          8  that it is automatic that it goes to the elected

          9  officials and the Community Boards.  That's part of

         10  the fundamental concepts of the Constitution, the

         11  right to be heard and notice is a part of the

         12  fundamental rights that this Nation has about

         13  anything and certainly about property.  And, so I

         14  would hope that you can kind of work to see that to

         15  resolve some of these issues.

         16                 COMMISSIONER GIBBS: And, your comment

         17  makes me reflect that we often are dispelling rumors

         18  where facilities are suspected to be in preparation

         19  for shelter when in fact they are not.  And, in

         20  other cases we are hearing from the community for

         21  the first time, what in fact, does turn to be a

         22  facility that is being prepared for a proposal for

         23  shelter.  So, I can't always guarantee that you'll

         24  hear first from me because sometimes I am hearing

         25  first from you.
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          2                 But, again I think we are all

          3  committed here to thinking about how we can work

          4  best with communities to make sure that your good

          5  work in serving the community, your constituents,

          6  both those who need shelter and those who don't can

          7  be supported.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Thank you

          9  very much.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Thank you very

         11  much Council Member Seabrook.  Again, Commissioner,

         12  I want to thank you for your time and for your

         13  testimony and for your responsiveness to the

         14  questions that have been put forward to you.

         15                 I would just like to make note that

         16  the members have some serious concerns about

         17  notification and the lack thereof. Everyone is

         18  interested in working with you and with the City so

         19  that you did not hear NIMBY at this table.  What you

         20  heard was tell me, tell me in an appropriate time-

         21  frame, tell the community in an appropriate time-

         22  frame.  I think that is very, very important in

         23  order for us to maximize the kind of support and the

         24  kind of service that we all want to see provided for

         25  people who are considered homeless.  Thank you very
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          2  much.

          3                 We are going to call on our next

          4  panel Juliette Ibelli, Ruth Bryah, Ruth Du Berry,

          5  Patti Hagan.  Would the Sergeant- at- Arms try to

          6  accommodate her with a seat please?

          7                 Before we begin, I would like to

          8  acknowledge Councilwoman Eva Moskowitz, the Chair of

          9  our Education Committee has joined us.

         10                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Good afternoon.

         11    Could you please raise your right hand?  Do you

         12  solemnly swear to affirm the testimony you are about

         13  to give is the truth, the whole truth and nothing

         14  but the truth?

         15                 MS. IBELLI: I do.

         16                 MS. BRYAH: I do.

         17                 MS. DU BERRY: I do.

         18                 MS. HAGAN: I do.

         19                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Thank you.

         20  Could you each, starting from right to left state

         21  your name and affiliation for the record?  Your

         22  testimony will be limited to three minutes each.

         23                 MS. IBELLI:  Juliette Ibelli, Bridge

         24  Plaza Civic Association, Brooklyn.

         25                 MS. BRYAH: Ruth Bryah, South East
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          2  Queens Concerned Neighbors.

          3                 MS. HAGAN: Patti Hagan, Prospect

          4  Heights Action Coalition, Prospect Heights,

          5  Brooklyn.

          6                 MS. DU BERRY: Ruth Du Berry, also a

          7  member of South East Queens Concerned Neighbors,

          8  representing United Neighbors Civic Association,

          9  Member of Community Board 12.

         10                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Please start

         11  from the left and go right.

         12                 MS. IBELLI:  Council Members DeBlasio

         13  and Perkins. The Bridge Plaza, Brooklyn community is

         14  in full support of the proposed amendment to Section

         15  612(a) (1- 4) of the New York City Charter to

         16  require that the Department of Homeless Services to

         17  give notice, as stated in 274.

         18                 Just very briefly, we feel it is

         19  necessary that each agency knows what is happening,

         20  works together and works with the community

         21  organizations and members.  Therefore, such

         22  notification is of the utmost importance for the

         23  benefit and welfare of all.

         24                 Recently, our community was not

         25  notified of an attempt to house a homeless shelter

                                                            92

          1  GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS AND GENERAL WELFARE

          2  at 200 Tillary Street.  We only learned of the

          3  attempt through the media.  We remain uniformed

          4  about this proposal.

          5                 We therefore, again, show our full

          6  support of the proposed amendment.  Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you very

          8  much.

          9                 MS. BRYAH: Chairman Perkins, as I

         10  said, I am the President of the South East Queens

         11  Concerned Neighbors.  We are concerned about the

         12  proliferation of homeless shelters in the South East

         13  Jamaica community.

         14                 We now have the largest shelter in

         15  New York City with over 1,000 residents, in a

         16  facility that was once a hotel.  It is run by the

         17  Salvation Army and when it opened, we were not

         18  informed, nor our Community Board or our

         19  legislators, until it was already, what is known as

         20  a done- deal.

         21                 No consideration was made after the

         22  impact this shelter would have on the surrounding

         23  community residents.  This shelter is located on

         24  138- 10 135th Avenue, which is very near the JFK

         25  Airport.  Over 600 children are living there.  South
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          2  Jamaica has a high incidence of asthma and this

          3  added to the problem because of the pollution from

          4  the airport.  This also affects the adults.

          5                 We question whether the health codes

          6  and fire codes are being followed in relation to the

          7  space and the numbers of families in rooms with

          8  cooking and refrigeration units.  Littering of

          9  trash, garbage, et cetera is thrown on the streets

         10  and on private property, loitering in the streets,

         11  and trespassing on homeowners private property.

         12                 Schools are already overcrowded,

         13  medical facilities are more crowded.  No added

         14  services are given to this situation. No increase in

         15  sanitation.  No increase in police.  No increase in

         16  bus services, etcetera.

         17                 The community is trying to work with

         18  the Salvation Army to resolve some of these

         19  problems.  But it isn't there, a Fair Share policy

         20  with equal protection under the law where federal

         21  money is being used.  Why does South Jamaica have to

         22  bear the burden, when other communities can be used?

         23    What about economic development in South Jamaica.

         24  If we become a homeless shelter, who will invest in

         25  this community?
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          2                 Where this particular shelter is

          3  located, there are several other hotels and they are

          4  having some difficulties also with finances because

          5  of 9- 11 and other things.  We are concerned that

          6  they will now turn into another homeless shelter.

          7  And, we will just become a community of homeless

          8  shelters.

          9                                     The people who

         10  live in that particular community are mostly seniors

         11  who live in one and two family homes, they pay their

         12  mortgages off, some of them, and now they have to

         13  deal with this kind of consideration.

         14                 We question that there was no

         15  notification given. The reason why we found out

         16  about it was because someone who works at the hotel,

         17  Best Western, which it was known as, knew about it

         18  and told some of the residents.  When we called and

         19  asked housing, Homeless Services Department, they

         20  couldn't tell us anything, community board couldn't

         21  tell us anything, the legislators couldn't tell us

         22  anything.  Then, on July 4th of last year, they

         23  moved them in and we questioned why this has to

         24  happen this way, when we have to contend with the

         25  people who are there -- we are not against homeless
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          2  people.  What we are against is not being notified

          3  and not trying to work them.

          4            I just want to make another point.  I just

          5  heard that the Saratoga Inn, which is also the

          6  second largest homeless shelter in Jamaica, is going

          7  to now want to add 152 rooms to theirs.  And, we

          8  question, how come we get it all?  Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Let me ask you a

         10  quick question.  How did you find out about the

         11  Saratoga Inn?

         12                 MS. BRYAH: The paper.  The newspaper.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Okay.  Are you

         14  on the Community Board?

         15                 MS BRYAH: No, she is.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Okay.  Thank you

         17  very much.

         18                 MS. HAGAN: This is Patti Hagan

         19  speaking.  Thank you Council Members Perkins,

         20  DeBlasio and the City Council for the chance to

         21  speak and thanks to James Davis for introducing this

         22  bill and for leading the 35th Council District in

         23  his fight for Fair Share.  The Fair Share criteria

         24  should be implemented instead of Brooklyn, the 35th

         25  Council District, many parts of Upper Manhattan,
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          2  Queens and the Bronx being crammed with their unfair

          3  share of  these stealth shelters, which is what we

          4  call them.

          5                 I am here today because Councilman

          6  Davis was always here and he was there in Brooklyn

          7  for the 35th Council District and for our problems.

          8  Just a year ago, he was leading, daily,

          9  demonstrations against the stealth shelter in Port

         10  Greene at 65 Claremont.  When the 35th Council

         11  District was orphaned by the murder of James Davis,

         12  so was this bill I thought.  Thank you for keeping

         13  it alive.

         14                 I would like to say that -- I would

         15  like to suggest certain strengthening of the

         16  language.  The bill as written mentions RFP's and

         17  contracts and it presumes a standard way of doing

         18  business by the Department of Homeless Services, but

         19  that is not the way the Department of Homeless

         20  Services does it business. The bill must be

         21  strengthened so as to wean the Department of

         22  Homeless Services from the paperless hand- shake

         23  M.O. That it follows.  That is, there are no

         24  contracts.  There are no RFP's for many of these

         25  shelters.
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          2                 However, as opposed to what Ms. Gibbs

          3  said, these things don't come on line overnight.  We

          4  have paperwork for the shelters on Pacific and Dean

          5  Street in the 35th District that went back six

          6  months before the shelter.  The DHS was supervising

          7  the whole efforts, even though it was supposedly a

          8  private hotel, just like the Marriott or the Hilton,

          9  as I was told by an Assistant Commissioner.  It's so

         10  outrageous that this should happen in this way.

         11                 I would like to say that over the

         12  past year I have gotten to know the Department of

         13  Homeless Services.  It is a covert agency, not

         14  unlike the CIA, in the way it operates.  It

         15  specializes in disinformation and double-talk,

         16  dissembling, duck and cover operations in targeted

         17  neighborhoods, such as mine in Brooklyn. They are

         18  overwhelmingly neighborhoods of color, neighborhoods

         19  of Latins, Latinos and Black neighbors, and it is

         20  obvious that the DHS and the people it works with

         21  feel they will get no comment, no back- talk, nobody

         22  will say a word.  With Councilman Davis they came to

         23  the wrong neighborhood.

         24                 I would like to just give a slight

         25  example of how unforthcoming the DHS has been in our
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          2  neighborhood dealings.  It refused to send a

          3  representative to the Community Board emergency

          4  meeting July 11, 2002.  Why?  I was told because the

          5  DHS had nothing to do with the shelter that was

          6  about to open.  We hear it's a hotel, a private

          7  hotel.  They never sent anybody to talk with our

          8  community.  I don't know what sort of Community

          9  Relations Council, Commissioner Gibbs is talking

         10  about.  Even Councilman Davis last January tried to

         11  deter the shelter at Pacific and Dean and he was not

         12  allowed inside the door.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Please

         14  summarize.

         15                 MS. BRYAH: Okay.  My theory has to do

         16  with given the notorious labyrinth history of the

         17  people, the slum- lords such as David Summerstein,

         18  Schimmerhorn, Mr. Tepper, that the DHS repeatedly

         19  deals with in housing these people, why does the DHS

         20  continue to give the contract only to this very

         21  small cartel of homeless profiteers.

         22                 Ms. Gibbs also talks about not- for-

         23  profit, she kept using that sacred word not- for-

         24  profit.  Most of the people running these stealth

         25  shelters are for- profit profiteers and just as Mr.
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          2  Barron described at Nobel Druallie (phonetic) they

          3  are kicking the resident people out, who are only

          4  paying $900 a month or whatever, in order to come in

          5  the other door and get $3,000 a month.

          6                 I think the DHS has a lot of nerve

          7  continuing to deal with these people.  Also, it does

          8  not submit RFP's for these emergency shelters, it

          9  does not take in any competitive bidding and it does

         10  not sign contracts.  There is nothing on paper and

         11  it is $182 million dollars a year or more that is

         12  going into the pockets of these homeless profiteers.

         13

         14                 In several instances the people

         15  started out as not for- profit, such as the infamous

         16  Praxis Housing Initiative and then the shelters that

         17  started out as not-for-profit with DHS, over a

         18  two-year period morphed into for-profit partnerships

         19  with members of the cartel, the homeless cartel such

         20  as Sydney Borenstein and the backer. It is

         21  outrageous that this be allowed to continue.

         22                 When the City Council says the DHS is

         23  trying to phase out the scatter site shelters and

         24  move people into other kinds of shelters, it's one

         25  hand moving the people into the other hand of the
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          2  same guy.  The same people control all these various

          3  kinds of homeless housing, David Tepper, Jay Tepper,

          4  Schimmerhorn, David Falk (phonetic) Gerry Pollick,

          5  David Summerstein, Allen Laps (phonetic) Israel

          6  Rebenowitz, Gerry Schrick (phonetic), S. Alter, Ben

          7  & Salberger, Steve Berger, et cetera, et cetera.

          8

          9                 DHS must know that these landlords

         10  don't just run the scatter site shelters badly.  If

         11  DHS is planning to stop doing scatter site business

         12  with these folks shouldn't it look into stopping

         13  doing business with them altogether and begin doing

         14  business with reputable shelter providers.  Why has

         15  DHS allowed this cartel to lock up the homeless

         16  shelter business at the highest prices demanded by

         17  them?

         18                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Please you have

         19  to sum up.

         20                 MS. BRYAH: Okay.  My summation is

         21                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Your second

         22  summation is --

         23                 MS. BRYAH: I have a lot --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: I understand,

         25  and I appreciate that --
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          2                 MS. BRYAH: I am very angry and my

          3  neighborhood is very angry.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: A lot of your

          5  neighbors are here that also want to share their

          6  story.

          7                 MS. BRYAH: Okay.  The notification --

          8  I applaud this bill but I am going to submit

          9  modification to the wording to make it stronger.

         10  Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you very

         12  much.  You know the whole Druallie (phonetic) issue

         13  in your testimony reminds me of a process regarding

         14  brownstones that have been SROs whereby the owners

         15  have to verify that they did not purposely displace

         16  people before they can make those changes.  I am

         17  just wondering now if DHS requires verification of

         18  owners, that they did not actually force people out.

         19  Because generally speaking, my experience is if

         20  there are 100 vacancies in a low- income development

         21  that's sort of suspicious because generally

         22  speaking, low- income families don't have options of

         23  that magnitude such that you would have vacancies,

         24  in fact quite the opposite.  There would usually be

         25  a long waiting list.  So, I think this is a question
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          2  that we have to look at in terms of that.  Next.

          3                 MS. DU BERRY: I am Ruth Du Berry, I

          4  am treasurer of the organization that Ms. Bryah's

          5  talked about, so I won't repeat what she said.  I

          6  should have said good morning to Chairperson's

          7  Perkins and DeBlasio and all the other Council

          8  Members and all those present.

          9                 I am a member of Community Board 12,

         10  I cannot speak for that Board because just recently

         11  we lost another James Davis who was the Chair of

         12  Community Board 12.  So, I don't even know whether

         13  the Board has been notified on the subject, but we

         14  did get the information on Friday and so here we

         15  are.  I haven't had time to write anything so I

         16  can't say I am speaking for the Community Board.

         17                 For the community that Ms. Bryah

         18  talked about and United Neighbors Civic Association,

         19  also we thank you and we are glad that you are

         20  following up with the bill in memory of James E.

         21  Davis.

         22                 But rather than just repeat the same

         23  things that have been said, I would like to talk

         24  about Commissioner Gibbs and the fact she said

         25  something about Advisory Council.  Well, we have one
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          2  at the Carlson House that was set up by the

          3  community, not by the Salvation Army.  We are the

          4  ones that set up the by- laws and we had some help

          5  from some of the people in Briarwood who are already

          6  familiar with it.

          7                 So to make a long story short, the

          8  community did not want that shelter there.  We are

          9  very sympathetic with homeless people, any of us

         10  could be homeless any day. But, that is not a good

         11  place for them.  They are in small rooms with a

         12  family of 3 to 5, they have no place to go but

         13  loiter out in the community.  Its affected the

         14  buses, the buses are overloaded and the rest of the

         15  community is complaining about the fact that the

         16  shelter takes all of the bus, no body had done

         17  anything about that.

         18                 But to make a long story short.  Back

         19  to the Advisory Council.  Yes, we sympathize with

         20  the residents and we are doing everything we

         21  possibly can to bring up things that will not hurt

         22  the community, but make sure that the residents are

         23  being treated properly.  Like, it was all of us who

         24  talked about the playground that was needed, so they

         25  are working on that.  They give us dates that they

                                                            104

          1  GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS AND GENERAL WELFARE

          2  are going to complete these things, but they don't

          3  meet their dates.

          4                 We talk about security. They are

          5  changing around the security, the people, not so

          6  much the residents, but their visitors are all over

          7  the community, trashing it and parking in the wrong

          8  places, et cetera.  We suggested too that it was

          9  very difficult as far as they are trying to wash

         10  clothes, well now they have a laundry.  So I am only

         11  saying to you that we do work with situations like

         12  that and City agencies when there is a problem. But,

         13  at far as Fair Share, we don't have it.  Community

         14  Board 12 does have the highest number of shelters in

         15  Queens.  Even though Queens does have a large

         16  number, most of them are in South East Queens in

         17  Board 12's area.

         18                 So, we are very interested in this.

         19  We weren't notified.  We begged to meet with

         20  Commissioner Gibbs.  She never came out to meet with

         21  us, nor did she send a representation.  So, that's

         22  what I wanted to say about that and there was

         23  something else I wanted to say, I had no time to

         24  really do much writing and right now it has probably

         25  slipped me.
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          2                 Community input is always important

          3  and we did not have time to give that input although

          4  we called some meetings, we called some of our

          5  elected officials together and there was plenty of

          6  time that everybody could have done a better job.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Sure.  Let me

          8  ask all of you a question that is sort of what a lot

          9  of people believe, but we don't like to put it on

         10  the table, but let me put it on the table.

         11                 There is a belief that if there was

         12  appropriate community notification, that it would

         13  just provide the community with an opportunity to

         14  mobilize against the facility and that therefore

         15  community notification is not a good idea because no

         16  community would accept it. How do you respond to

         17  that.

         18                 MS. DU BERRY:  I feel that's a cop-

         19  out because the community just wants to have Fair

         20  Share.  We're human, we are dealing with human

         21  beings and young children.  I'm a senior, but we are

         22  working with other people who are not seniors, the

         23  young people also to get them out and we do support

         24  taking care of anybody that needs a home.  But, we

         25  do realize that the City must have other ways of
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          2  trying to use some of this money and some of all

          3  these buildings and houses that are coming up in our

          4  neighborhood, illegally constructed that they are

          5  selling for thousands of dollars.  Why doesn't the

          6  City try to get some control over those people, the

          7  contractors, many of whom are not even certified and

          8  have no permits to build.

          9                 So, no, I would not say that the

         10  community is against shelter people at all.  With

         11  time we can respond better, maybe come up with a

         12  better idea, a better area, work with them, that

         13  kind of thing.  We need to be heard.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Next.

         15                 MS. BRYAH: I think what we are saying

         16  is that we're the ones, in the South Jamaica area,

         17  that's getting all of the shelters, where there are

         18  other areas where they should be going also.  And,

         19  speaking with the Mayor, at a meeting one time, he

         20  mentioned that Queens doesn't have as many as

         21  Brooklyn and New York.

         22                 But that is not the question.  The

         23  question is why are they all in one small South

         24  Jamaica area that is overloaded. Our schools are

         25  overcrowded, our schools are not doing as well as
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          2  other areas and they still put all these things on

          3  us.  We don't get as many police.  There are many

          4  aspects of what is going on that we could work with

          5  it if we had the support too.  We don't have the

          6  support services.  They put something like a

          7  thousand people in a small area like that and then

          8  they talk about building and adding on to another

          9  one to make it also the biggest one. Why does that

         10  have to be in Queens, in South Jamaica Queens, I

         11  should say?  Because Queens area, there are some

         12  places where I am sure they could find a place for

         13  some of these shelters.  But there's where the

         14  community might raise a lot of fuss, saying not in

         15  my backyard.

         16                 But, that's not what we are doing. We

         17  are trying to work with it, but it is impossible to

         18  work with that kind of situation.

         19                 MS. DU BERRY: Just one quick sentence

         20  to add to that.  We understand that most of the

         21  people who are in that shelter, over 1,000 people

         22  come from the Bronx and Manhattan and Brooklyn and

         23  not from Queens.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: That's

         25  interesting, because it's contrary to what we were
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          2  told earlier, at least as far as the intention of

          3  the Department of Homeless Services.  So, even in

          4  that respect there is a significant problem in terms

          5  of what their plan is versus what the reality is.

          6                 Next. Yes?

          7                 MS. HAGAN: I would say, the more

          8  notification, the better and I don't think it would

          9  cause problems in 35th District, we already have

         10  close to 48 shelters of one sort or another, one

         11  third of them homeless shelters already, before

         12  these other ones came in, also it would give the

         13  community a chance to find out who is operating the

         14  shelter.  At this point, we don't really know. What

         15  we do know is that the Praxis Housing Initiative

         16  Interim Housing, Father Gordon Duggins and Chief

         17  Sterling Vincemeyer (phonetic) have pretty much

         18  their total employee roster is Latin Kings gang

         19  members and they have installed the Latin Kings gang

         20  members at the front desk in these shelters and this

         21  is being done without any background checks and

         22  these guys and women are dealing with young children

         23  and families and I think that is a cause for

         24  concern.

         25                 I've also been told, the neighbor was
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          2  told, by one of the women in this shelter, that she

          3  wanted to get out of there as fast as possible

          4  because the Latin Kings were dealing drugs to the

          5  people in the shelter on the Sixth and Dean Street.

          6  That's something we would like to know, have some

          7  background, and if we had some notification we would

          8  be able to do that.  Also, the shelter, when it

          9  opened, when we found out that it was going to be a

         10  shelter, the work permit said artist lofts there was

         11  no hint of what was coming our way in one of the

         12  buildings.  The other building had no work permit at

         13  all and had never filed any plan. And we were

         14  concerned about the safety of the structure for the

         15  people.  We are also very concerned about the

         16  density of human occupants in this place.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: So, the notice

         18  called for artist lofts?

         19                 MS. HAGAN:  The work permit that was

         20  filed, yes, and it was only after the Prospect

         21  Heights Action Coalition went down and did research

         22  and found out what in fact was happening that the

         23  Department of Buildings kind of, a month later, got

         24  around to making them change it.  But, it's all

         25  smoke and mirrors and it's bate and switch.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Okay.  Very

          3  good.  Thank you very much for your testimony and

          4  for your patience and we appreciate it.  It's very,

          5  very important.

          6                 By the way, you made reference to a

          7  James Davis that recently passed, he was the

          8  Chairperson of Community Board 12.

          9                 Is he the James Davis that brought a

         10  case against the City, do you know?

         11                 MS. DU BERRY: (Mic. Not turned on.

         12  Reply not heard.)

         13                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Well, okay. On

         14  behalf of the City Council, let me extend our

         15  condolences to your Board and I am sure you will

         16  receive something formal in that regard.  Thank you.

         17                 Next, we will have Kathy Casey,

         18  Javier Llano, District Manager from Community Board

         19  Eleven, Barbara Van Buren from Community Board

         20  Seven, and Patricia Deans.

         21                 Let me point out the next round will

         22  include Brian Williams, Francis Byrd, Viola Greene,

         23  and Howard Pitsch.

         24                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Good afternoon.

         25    Could you please raise your right hand.  Do you
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          2  solemnly swear and affirm the testimony you are

          3  about to give to be the truth, the whole truth and

          4  nothing but the truth?

          5                 MS. CASEY: I do.

          6                 MR. LLANO: I do.

          7                 MS. VAN BUREN: I do.

          8                 MS. DEANS: I do.

          9                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Okay.  Thank

         10  you.  Before giving testimony, please state your

         11  name and who you are associated with.

         12                 MS. CASEY: Good afternoon, my name is

         13  Kathy Casey. I live in the Chelsea area of

         14  Manhattan.  I don't have as much direct experience

         15  with living in shelters for homeless persons as some

         16  people do and I've learned a lot from people's

         17  remarks this morning but I want to say I am in favor

         18  of the proposed legislation and I think it is long

         19  overdue in fact because it is more than grotesque

         20  that one- third of the Council Districts in this

         21  City do not have any so- called temporary shelter

         22  facilities for homeless individuals and families.

         23                 I have had some interactions with

         24  people who are homeless and who are in fear of

         25  imminently being homeless.  I frequently attend the
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          2  Chelsea Coalition on housing meeting where I always

          3  encounter people who are about to be evicted by

          4  their landlords or who are being harassed or having

          5  services withheld to drive them out of their

          6  apartments and who are living in fear of being

          7  homeless.

          8                 I attend a church where there is a

          9  shelter provided for homeless women and their

         10  children but the church is only able to provide this

         11  shelter once a week on Wednesday night, when they

         12  provide cots and a hot meal for the families, but

         13  women are very glad to be able to have that

         14  opportunity once a week even, because the shelters

         15  that they have to stay in with their children

         16  otherwise are so horrible and I just want to say

         17  that its clear to me and I think to most reasonable

         18  people who have lived in New York City all of our

         19  lives.  I grew up in the Bronx, my parents both grew

         20  up in the Bronx and I've always lived in New York

         21  City.

         22                 Indeed most people who are lucky

         23  enough not to be homeless are perfectly willing to

         24  have shelters, temporary and otherwise for homeless

         25  people in their communities.  The problem has
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          2  everyone who is aware of the situation in not

          3  looking at it in a hypocritical way knows the

          4  problem is the lack of notification to Community

          5  Boards and to elected officials which simply makes

          6  it difficult and impossible for communities to get

          7  together and work in the best way they can to make

          8  these temporary shelters as comfortable and as good

          9  as they can be for the people while they have to

         10  live in them.

         11                 I'll just speak briefly about a

         12  related experience. Five years ago I was involved

         13  with some veteran community activist in Chelsea with

         14  trying to make it clear that most of the community

         15  residents were wanting to show their welcome to the

         16  people who were going to be moving into a

         17  residential facility for people living with AIDS

         18  that was being prepared in our community and we

         19  coordinated a benefit concert to raise money for

         20  amenities for the residents such as musical

         21  instruments, and entertainment equipment and

         22  computers and things that they might want.  There

         23  was a great deal of support for this but there also

         24  were people in the community who were against the

         25  facility.
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          2                 But, my overall point is that most of

          3  us welcome, well planned facilities for homeless

          4  persons in our communities and the problem that this

          5  legislation is addressing the really serious problem

          6  of number one, only placing these facilities in

          7  certain neighborhoods and not in others and number

          8  two, not consulting with the hard- working members

          9  of the community Planning Board to make it official.

         10                 COUNCIL CLERK: Please sum up.

         11                 MS. CASEY:  So, I am in favor of the

         12  legislation, the proposed legislation.  I do hope

         13  and I second the statement that was made earlier

         14  that perhaps the Council Members should tighten the

         15  wording of the bill to close any possible loop-

         16  holes as well.

         17                 COUNCIL CLERK: Thank you very much

         18  Kathy.  Next.

         19                 MR. LLANO: Good afternoon my name is

         20  Javier Llano, I represent Community Board Eleven in

         21  Manhattan.

         22                 We support the legislation.  Only

         23  this summer our board received notification about

         24  new transitional homeless facilities in our District

         25  only days before those facilities were schedule to
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          2  open.  The Department of Homeless Services never

          3  consulted with our Board about the amount of

          4  homeless housing, services and special needs housing

          5  already located in our District. Our Board knows

          6  that the City Charter's Fair Share mandate has been

          7  violated by the Department of Homeless Services in

          8  our district. The Department has neglected to survey

          9  community opinion and open the process of selecting

         10  new homeless facilities to the public.

         11                 We hope that this new law will create

         12  a fair and transparent process where the community

         13  boards and local elected officials are active

         14  participants in the decision- making process in

         15  planning for homeless facilities and services.  The

         16  City Charter established specific duties and

         17  responsibilities to the community boards in terms of

         18  working with the residents and local stakeholders in

         19  the planning and development of our community.

         20  Including community boards in DHSs selection process

         21  is therefore only natural.

         22                 As part of this process Manhattan

         23  Community Board 11 would like to submit an amendment

         24  to include the local state senators and assembly

         25  members as part of the notification, planning and
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          2  collaboration process.  As local stakeholders their

          3  input in finding solutions and better alternatives

          4  to homeless facilities is critical.

          5                 In addition Manhattan Community Board

          6  11 believes that providing permanent affordable

          7  housing and increasing homeownership is the right

          8  policy to avoid homelessness and alleviate the

          9  homeless problem in our City.

         10                 We challenge this Committee and the

         11  City Council to make a commitment too the working

         12  poor of developing more permanent affordable housing

         13  for families with children and to provide more

         14  opportunities for low- income residents to realize

         15  part of the American Dream of owning their own

         16  houses.

         17                 We also want to thank Council Member

         18  Reed for his intervention during the rezoning of

         19  East Harlem and securing $12 million dollars for

         20  more low- income and affordable housing in our

         21  District.  Thank you.

         22                 COUNCIL CLERK: Thank you very much.

         23  Next.

         24                 MS. DEANS: My name is Patricia Deans

         25  from Community Board 16 and I live in Glenmore Plaza
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          2  which is a public housing development. I came here

          3  with a written statement, but after listening to the

          4  testimony that I heard here today, if I had any

          5  doubt in my mind as to whether or not we, as poor

          6  people, are truly represented in the process, my

          7  questions were answered.

          8                 I would like to say to the City

          9  Council thank you and God bless James Davis because

         10  this is the type of hearing that is long over- due.

         11  We have a society which is relatively simple, but

         12  only because of James and other things that's not

         13  what it should be about, do people suffer unduly.

         14                   I know what it is to be a single

         15  parent, to work, to take care of children, to need

         16  shelter, but you only have two kinds of people in

         17  this society, you are either homeless or you are a

         18  homeowner.  Having come from a household in the

         19  South where my dad was a builder, my grandfather was

         20  a builder, I know what is involved in building homes

         21  for people.

         22                 And, so today you see in my yard the

         23  dog has a house. You have people, human beings who

         24  are entitled today to less than that less and for

         25  that I think that housing should be a constitutional
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          2  right, it should belong to everybody.

          3                 I pay taxes, I am supposed to be part

          4  of a process, I'm supposed to enjoy the amenities.

          5  Nobody wants to work their entire life, pay three

          6  times what the market value was and come up as a

          7  senior person and you are still in the same place.

          8                 Everybody works with incentive.  You

          9  are working towards something.  Because you are poor

         10  doesn't mean that you don't have the American Dream.

         11  It doesn't mean that you don't want to invest in

         12  your own future.  You know, in business we can't all

         13  be the top.  Somebody has to be the custodian,

         14  someone has to be the cook, but every person is

         15  important.  There is no such thing as nonessential

         16  people.

         17                 When you go into your community you

         18  volunteer, you want to bring something back to the

         19  community.  You want to give your Ph.D. Which is

         20  poverty hung in determination which comes from the

         21  experimental stage, where you have something to

         22  share with someone and all the doors across the

         23  board are closed.  What is that about.

         24                 And so, in this particular bill I'm

         25  truly grateful and I really think that housing is
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          2  something that really needs to be addressed in the

          3  City and throughout the nation because you say you

          4  are the landlord but I think the reverse is true

          5  because this is the Lord's land and we were all born

          6  into the world.  And, all because of unmitigated

          7  greed, people suffer, now it's time for a change.

          8                 I feel as a black woman in the 21st

          9  Century, I am not and have not been represented, and

         10  taxation without representation is tyranny, it is

         11  tyranny.  And, today we need to stand based on what

         12  James Davis stood for, Councilman James Davis, he

         13  was a sincere person, he was a person that you had

         14   -- and I see in this particular Council more people

         15  with compassion for what's happening to the poor and

         16  I am truly grateful for that because that is what's

         17  needed.  You have people who have lived in the

         18  trenches and know what it takes to make a difference

         19  but the doors are closed.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you very

         21  much.

         22                 MR. WILLIAMS:  Good afternoon.  My

         23  name is Brian Williams. I am formerly President of

         24  Prospect Heights Action Coalition and also President

         25  of Bergen Street Block Association. I am going to
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          2  deviate a little bit from the text that I have

          3  prepared just to make it brief.

          4                 It's been our experience --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Well, you don't

          6  have to be brief because the text is very good and

          7  so for the record I wouldn't mind your taking your

          8  time to read it.

          9                 MR. WILLIAMS: Oh okay.  I'll go

         10  ahead.  I am here to support Bill number 274.  That

         11  neighborhood official has been notified and

         12  consulted.

         13                 Our neighborhood's recent experience

         14  is but one example of how the Mayor's office,

         15  continuing to react in crisis mode to its court

         16  mandated obligation to house the homeless, has

         17  abdicated any responsibility for adopting policies

         18  in this area.

         19                 While the Mayor's office continues to

         20  run in circles on this issue from one administration

         21  to the next, the City is being fleeced by developers

         22  who know the City has left itself without any

         23  alternatives for housing the City's homeless

         24  population.

         25                 In July of last year, in unrelated
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          2  discussions with our community Board about an

          3  existing shelter already in our community, the

          4  operator of that facility made an inadvertent "slip

          5  of tongue" that it had completed discussions with

          6  the City for a new shelter to be located in the

          7  community.  Construction was all but completed and

          8  opening was imminent.  In this instance, the DHS had

          9  not seen fit to notify any of the Community Board,

         10  our City Councilman or even our local school of this

         11  proposed facility.

         12                 Our Community Board is already the

         13  home of over forty social services facilities, at

         14  last count.  This compares with many fewer for

         15  neighborhoods like Park Slope.  In any case,

         16  Community Board Eight called an emergency meeting to

         17  find out more information about the proposed

         18  shelter.

         19                 Suffice it to say, that almost no

         20  information was made available to the community at

         21  that meeting or subsequently, either by the City or

         22  by the developers or operators of the facility,

         23  other than the operator's assertion that a

         24  residential facility such as was proposed could be

         25  developed as of right under the manufacturing
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          2  zoning.

          3                 After some investigation by members

          4  of our block association and neighboring

          5  associations, we found strong indications of a

          6  number of things, including that (1) the developer

          7  had constructed the facility without proper building

          8  permits; (2) the facility has been constructed in a

          9  manufacturing zone without a proper zoning variance;

         10  (3) the architect of record used by the developer to

         11  comply with building code and zoning ordinance is

         12  under review to have his license revoked; and (4)

         13  the developer/operator is under investigation by the

         14  U.S. Attorney's office for misapplication of

         15  charitable funds, including channeling such funds to

         16  members of a known drug gang.

         17            When we tried to make our concerns known

         18  to the City, both at the Department of Buildings and

         19  the Department of Homeless Services, the response

         20  was disheartening on both counts.  Although we

         21  understand that all 80 of the single rooms at the

         22  facility have been filled and paid for by DHS at the

         23  rate of approximately $90 per room per day since the

         24  facility opened, DHS has stated that they are not

         25  accountable for the facility being constructed in

                                                            123

          1  GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS AND GENERAL WELFARE

          2  compliance with Building Codes or the Zoning

          3  Ordinance or that the owner/operator may be under

          4  criminal investigation.

          5                 DHS has argued that because its

          6  agreement with the owner/operator of the facility is

          7  an oral agreement and not a written agreement, it

          8  should not have to comply with any legal

          9  requirements that it would otherwise have to comply

         10  with.

         11                 In conclusion, in Prospect Heights,

         12  the City is paying handsomely for a poorly designed

         13  and conceived shelter that contributes nothing to

         14  our neighborhood, which is being operated by

         15  individuals who do not appear to be accountable to

         16  anyone but themselves.

         17                 We have received no assurances that

         18  other vacant buildings in the community, which

         19  should be a resource for a variety of housing and

         20  commercial development, will not be viewed as

         21  convenient and relatively cheap locations to house

         22  social service facilities unwanted by other

         23  neighborhoods.

         24                 So long as the Mayor is permitted to

         25  hide behind legal distinctions which should not make
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          2  a difference, such as whether or not its contracts

          3  are in writing, then laws such as the one proposed

          4  will be required.

          5                 It would be my hope that the Mayor

          6  would develop a homeless policy, which takes into

          7  account Fair Share considerations and actively seeks

          8  to communicate those considerations to the

          9  communities where shelters are proposed to be

         10  located.  Until he does, I would encourage you to

         11  adopt Introductory Bill 274.  Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you very

         13  much.

         14                 MR. BYRD: Good afternoon Mr. Chairman

         15  and Members of the Council, ladies and gentlemen.

         16  My name is Francis Byrd.  I am the Democratic

         17  District Leader for the 57th Assembly District and I

         18  am filling the vacancy left by the tragic death of

         19  Councilman James E. Davis.  I am also a member of

         20  the Prospect Heights Action Coalition, which filed

         21  suit last year against the Department of Homeless

         22  Services regarding the placement of a stealth

         23  shelter in our community.

         24                 I have some comments and suggestions

         25  regarding Intro. 274, which I do support which was
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          2  Councilman Davis' original bill requiring the

          3  Department of Homeless Services to provide 60- day

          4  notification to Council Members, Borough Presidents

          5  and Community Planning Boards, prior to the opening

          6  of transitional facilities in the community.

          7                 I would recommend that the following

          8  information be considered a key part of the notice

          9  requirement.

         10                 One, a copy of the signed

         11  contract/agreement between DHS and the service

         12  provider or facility administrator, which would

         13  specify what services are to be offered to clients

         14  and what policies and procedures are being used by

         15  the contractor to maintain a safe and quality

         16  facility.

         17                 Two, that a service evaluation report

         18  on the contractor, detailing information on the

         19  quality of services offered clients, the proposed

         20  length of average stay of clients and complaints, if

         21  any, from the neighborhood civic associations, local

         22  precincts, community boards and elected officials.

         23                 Third, and lastly, a report similar

         24  in scope to an Environmental Impact Study, which

         25  could be called a Transitional Facility
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          2  Siting/Location Study. Reviewing the potential

          3  impact of the facility on the community, and on the

          4  number of similar facilities located in community

          5  boards where this transitional housing facility is

          6  proposed to be located.

          7                 To underscore what Brian Williams and

          8  Patti Hagan said, with respect to DHS, our prior

          9  dealings with them, we are shocking to say at least,

         10  we learned in a meeting with Deputy Commissioner for

         11  Planning, Emory Stretsman (phonetic), I believe that

         12  the DHS had no facility, one for planning and siting

         13  these facilities.  Essentially, they claim to be at

         14  the mercy of landlords with property in specific

         15  neighborhoods.  If there are factories, old

         16  manufacturing sites, essentially that's where a

         17  developer can come, a real estate developer, claim

         18  to be developing housing, either moderate or low

         19  class housing, and then claim to put in a shelter

         20  afterwards because their dealings is with DHS and

         21  with the so- called non- profit service providers,

         22  such as Praxis.

         23                 In this meeting also we asked, well

         24  tell us about, since all the complaints about

         25  NIMBYism are in the air, that these are simply
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          2  communities that don't want these type of

          3  facilities, even ones that have 40 or more

          4  facilities, such as Community Board Eight, part of

          5  which is in the 57th Assembly District.  We ask,

          6  well what sort of quality control do you have?  Do

          7  you have anything documenting how well your clients

          8  are being served by these service providers?  Their

          9  answer was, no.  We have no data whatsoever on any

         10  of these service providers to determine whether or

         11  not they do a good job of providing service to our

         12  clients, which is part of our mission, or whether

         13  there are any problems with the facilities that

         14  these providers operate in the communities where

         15  they have been located.

         16                 So essentially what DHS is saying is

         17  that, they don't have an idea and they don't care.

         18  All they care about is

         19  not being on New York One, not having EAU on

         20  Television and not having you, and other elected

         21  officials badger them and anything short of that is

         22  fine.

         23                 I believe that these recommendations

         24  constitutes small, but important changes that if

         25  codified as law will create greater transparency in
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          2  DHSs dealings with Borough Presidents, with Council

          3  Members, community residents and their clients.  I

          4  would also say, we certainly would support the

          5  proposed amendment by Community Board 11, with

          6  respect to the notification of state elected

          7  officials from the State Senate and the Assembly.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you very

          9  much.  We will definitely take that into

         10  consideration.  You know we are the City Council so

         11  we have a certain superior attitude about these

         12  matters.

         13                 In any case, I want to thank all of

         14  you and ask you just one quick question myself.

         15                 To the observation that given

         16  notification, you would use that as an opportunity

         17  to reject automatically any kind of facilities in

         18  your neighborhood and that therefore notification

         19  should not be given.  What is your response to that

         20  observation?

         21                 MR. BYRD: Well, let me say this very

         22  briefly, I am speaking for myself, I think I'm

         23  speaking for other members of the Prospect Heights

         24  Action Coalition as well.  In Prospect Heights there

         25  was not immediate resistance to homeless people
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          2  being sheltered per se.

          3                 What we were concerned with was one,

          4  the process, and two, the quality of the facility

          5  and the operator that would be placed in the

          6  community.  Those things are very, very important.

          7                 We were also concerned with secondly,

          8  the Fair Share criteria and its lack of application

          9  in these instances.  Community Board Eight, as I

         10  pointed out previously has about between 40 and 48

         11  of these types of facilities.  This very facility

         12  that was going to be operated by Praxis, was located

         13  within two blocks of an alcohol rehabilitation

         14  facility and a drug treatment facility.  I mean,

         15  doesn't anybody take into account any of these

         16  things at DHS when they are in the planning.

         17                 So, if we had notification and

         18  notification that also specified who the service

         19  provider is going to be, what the quality of

         20  services that the clients receive, and whether or

         21  not there have been any previous complaints about

         22  the service provider in other communities, so that

         23  we are prepared in the immediate communities

         24  surrounding the facility, the police department is

         25  prepared, everyone knows when there is proper

                                                            130

          1  GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS AND GENERAL WELFARE

          2  notification, not just the Community Boards and not

          3  just the elected officials, but also to the

          4  residents, so that things can be done properly.

          5                 Will there be opposition?  I am

          6  certain there is, there will be, however, the type,

          7  nature, and voracity of the opposition depends on

          8  how much is transparent and how much is clear to

          9  people.  The problem in this instance was that DHS

         10  is completely opaque.

         11                 I have to agree with much of what

         12  Council Member Barron said and I believe that Linda

         13  Gibbs may be a good person, however, she is

         14  dissembling to a point that makes President Bush

         15  look like an honest man.  I mean this woman is not

         16  telling the complete truth and look, I come from

         17  Brooklyn, I have to say you are either a fool or a

         18  knave, she has to pick one.  She is either a fool

         19  and doesn't know what is going on in her agency, or

         20  she's a knave and she's in on it. I mean those are

         21  the only choices that she's got.

         22                 MR. WILLIAMS: In addition to what

         23  Francis just said, I would just like to add that, I

         24  think it would give communities an opportunity to

         25  discuss with DHS exactly what population is coming
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          2  in.  If it is indeed members of that community

          3  versus some outside community because with transient

          4  populations comes transient issues.

          5                 MR. LLANO: Again, it is very

          6  important the notification.  Open the possible

          7  borough planning.  We have seen that DHS doesn't

          8  allow good planning system locating these

          9  facilities.  And also, open the accountability.  We

         10  have seen this lack of accountability for the

         11  providers.  So this notification process will open

         12  the whole process to more accountability and better

         13  planning.  And, that's why we're for this

         14  legislation.

         15                     MS. DEANS: And, as far as

         16  Community Board 16, the latest shelter Women in

         17  Need, Inc. At 1-25 Junius Street, Brooklyn, I think

         18  it would better serve the community in terms of

         19  something to do with economic development.

         20                 We have a high concentration of poor

         21  people and you have the Industrial Park right there,

         22  but you have no employment. And so, I think

         23  notification gives you opportunities to come forth

         24  with something else.  That certainly was an

         25  industrial space in the beginning, but now it's a
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          2  shelter.  So I think that there is needs that the

          3  community have that's legitimate, because without

          4  economics you can't do anything else.

          5                 And, so we have a community full of

          6  young people who are unemployed, unemployable, they

          7  need the services, they need intervention, all kinds

          8  of services.  And, you have these people coming but

          9  you don't see any outcome from the program.  So, I

         10  think notification is very important based on what

         11  the needs are of the community because being poor

         12  people you don't have a problem with people needing

         13  homes and wanting to help, as a matter of fact. But,

         14  there are certain things, it's like playing

         15  baseball, every base has to be covered and it starts

         16  with economics.

         17                      MR. BYRD:  Let me also add that

         18  I think that in order to get some straight answers

         19  from the Commissioner, because whatever answer she

         20  gives you today, if we had another meeting with her,

         21  and we had one thanks to Councilman Davis,

         22  Assemblyman Greene and State Senator Montgomery,

         23  when we charged DHS's headquarters after a

         24  demonstration in front of their building, where

         25  essentially the Deputy Commissioner told us, we
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          2  don't have a plan, we don't have a clue, we just

          3  basically follow wherever the real estate guys go

          4  and say we've got space.  We just go over there and

          5  no, we don't have written contracts, and no we don't

          6  follow written RFP's.  We may follow it for buying

          7  paper and supplies, but they certainly don't follow

          8  the policy procurement rules when it comes to the

          9  siting of shelters or the disposition of services

         10  for their clients.

         11                 This is the point that certainly

         12  riles many of us, certainly in Prospect Heights and

         13  I imagine in other communities as well.  Someone

         14  here mentioned, if you talk about the size of the

         15  space that people are forced to live in, it's clear

         16  that they are being treated like cattle and if not

         17  by the operators of the shelters themselves, then

         18  certainly the real estate people who have the leases

         19  on that property are getting a large cut of that

         20  $3,000 or $4,000 a month, those people are profiting

         21  and it helps destroy the rental market in those

         22  communities.  Not just in Noble Druallie (phonetic)

         23  where the example is so very startling, where people

         24  are being kicked out at $900, $800 or $700 a month,

         25  but it distorts the entire community around there,
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          2  because look, if you can get $3,000 a month, I mean

          3  and you are a landlord, you are going to be sorely

          4  tempted in hard times to get your guaranteed $3,000

          5  even if you get paid late by the City, than to have

          6  to worry about the vagaries of having someone in

          7  who's employed.

          8                 MS. BRYAN: Mr. Williams I have a

          9  quick question. Once you brought your excellent

         10  comments about the lack of proper building permits

         11  and so on, did you ever get -- how was this

         12  resolved, because I had a similar situation on the

         13  West Side.  I was just wondering how did that end up

         14  getting resolved in that particular instance.

         15                 MR. WILLIAMS: It was resolved by the

         16  Commissioner of DHS I think making some thought of

         17  arrangement with the Commissioner of Buildings.

         18  And, the Commissioner of Buildings turned up at the

         19  site and handed the work permit, the approved work

         20  permit to the developer of the site.  In spite of

         21  all directions, and in spite of all zoning concerns.

         22                 MS. BRYAN: Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Did you have a

         24  comment?

         25                 MS. CASEY: Council Member Perkins, I
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          2  just wanted to respond briefly to your question.

          3  No, I do not think that notification would increase

          4  the opportunities or open the door more for

          5  opposition to the siting of shelters in communities.

          6    I think that there always will be some people in

          7  every community who will take the "not in my

          8  backyard" attitude, but going along with what you

          9  said yourself at the beginning of the hearing, I

         10  think the majority of people are perfectly accepting

         11  of providing shelter within the community for people

         12  from that community and even for some people who are

         13  not previously residing in that community.

         14                 I served on Community Board four in

         15  Manhattan in the early 1980s and I often attend the

         16  Community Board meetings and I think that

         17  notification would instead of causing more

         18  opposition would increase the opportunities for a

         19  positive interaction and for people working together

         20  within the community to make the shelter experience

         21  as good as it can be during the time when people

         22  unfortunately have to live in shelters.  So, I think

         23  it would be a positive thing and not a negative

         24  thing.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you very
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          2  much.  I appreciate your testimony and your

          3  patience.

          4                 We are now going to go to our next

          5  and last panel. Viola Greene and Howard Pitch.  Is

          6  there anyone else that I haven't called who has

          7  submitted?  Okay.  Is Viola here?

          8                 MS. GREENE: Here.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Okay.  Swear

         10  them in.

         11                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Good afternoon.

         12  Could you raise your right hand?  Do you solemnly

         13  swear or affirm the testimony you are about to give

         14  is the truth, the whole truth and nothing but the

         15  truth?

         16                 MS. GREENE: I do.

         17                 MR. PITSCH: I do.

         18                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Thank you.

         19  Could you please state your name and your

         20  association for the record, when you give your

         21  testimony.

         22                 MS. GREENE: Viola Greene, District

         23  Manager of Brooklyn Community Board 16.

         24                 Good afternoon.  Again, my name is

         25  Viola Greene and I am the District Manager of
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          2  Community Board 16 and I appear before you this

          3  afternoon on behalf of Brooklyn Community Board 16

          4  in support of Intro. 274.

          5                 In most instances our Board was not

          6  notified, or only received a day or two prior notice

          7  from the Department of Homeless Services before its

          8  transitional facility opened in our community.  By

          9  doing so, it did not give the Board and the

         10  community an opportunity to voice their opinions

         11  about the facility before it opened.

         12                 By giving us prior notice of 60 days,

         13  it affords the community an opportunity to voice

         14  concerns about the impact such a facility will have

         15  on the community.

         16                 In our community, which we feel is

         17  over saturated with transitional housing, there are

         18  over 1,600 units of transitional housing that are

         19  funded by governmental resources. There are also

         20  several hundred units that operate with private

         21  funds or government resources other than those

         22  provided by the New York City Department of Homeless

         23  Services.

         24                 When enacted, Intro. 274 will give us

         25  an opportunity to meet with the Department of
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          2  Homeless Services, elected officials and sponsors of

          3  transitional housing to hear and discuss community

          4  concerns, which is not being done at this time.

          5                 The present method of siting

          6  transitional housing creates an atmosphere of

          7  hostility and undermines our efforts in Community

          8  District 16 to rebuild our community with permanent,

          9  affordable housing.

         10                 Also, transitional housing impacts on

         11  our limited resources such as sanitation, police and

         12  education services.  In recent months, two new

         13  facilities opened in Community District 16, one

         14  housing 217 families and another housing 200 men.

         15  Instead of our Department of Sanitation's manpower

         16  and equipment increasing, they were decreased due to

         17  budget cuts.

         18                 Brooklyn Community Board 16 supports

         19  and urges the passage of Intro 274.

         20                 MR. PITSCH: I am Howard Pitsch, Chair

         21  of the Fort Greene Association.  Chairperson Perkins

         22  and other members of the City Council, we honor our

         23  late beloved 35th Council District Member James E.

         24  Davis, who at the urging of the Fort Greene

         25  Association of Brooklyn did co-sponsor Introductory
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          2  Resolution 274. That resolution, as you well know,

          3  is to amend the City Charter so that the Department

          4  of Homeless Services gives to the District's City

          5  Council Member, the Borough President's office and

          6  the pertinent Community Board, at least 60- days

          7  notice of any contract for transitional housing and

          8  services.

          9                 We find it a degree of arrogance in

         10  Commissioner Gibbs' statement that, "we try to give

         11  two- weeks notice". And she further said, she was

         12  not aware of any specific time frame in giving the

         13  community notice.  We find that unjust and arrogant.

         14                 We strongly urge you to adopt

         15  Resolution 274.  It is fair, just and equitable.

         16                 Mr. Perkins and Council Members

         17  please keep resolute in your minds what changed the

         18  course of American history more than two and a

         19  quarter centuries ago, when this very man, your

         20  President of the City Council, Thomas Jefferson,

         21  wrote the Declaration of Independence.  "We hold

         22  these truths to be self- evident, that all men are

         23  created equal, that they are endowed with certain

         24  inalienable rights, that among these rights are

         25  Life, Liberty and the pursuit of Happiness.  That to
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          2  secure these rights, governments are instituted

          3  among Men, deriving their just powers from the

          4  consent of the governed.  That whenever any form of

          5  government becomes destructive of these ends, it is

          6  the right of the People to alter or to abolish it,

          7  and to institute new government.  Prudence, indeed,

          8  will dictate that Governments long established

          9  should not be changed for light and transient

         10  causes".

         11                 Therefore Mr. Perkins and Members of

         12  the Council, we say that the Department of Homeless

         13  Services should not be destructive to the Right of

         14  the People to have a say in what transpires in their

         15  own communities.  Please make those words indelible

         16  in your minds:  Governments are instituted among

         17  Men, deriving their just powers from the consent of

         18  the governed, not from the arrogance of those who

         19  would govern us.  Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you very

         21  much.  I know that having the advantage of these

         22  contemporary times, that Jefferson probably would

         23  not have emphasized "men" as much today as he had

         24  then.

         25                 MR. PITSCH: Men and women now.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Of course.  So,

          3  I just wanted for the record to make sure that you

          4  appreciate that as well.  I know we in the Council

          5  appreciate that.

          6                 I have been asking everyone, do they

          7  think that the opportunity to be notified would be

          8  an opportunity to reject.  That in fact, not only an

          9  opportunity, but would result in an automatic

         10  rejection, as opposed to some fair consideration of

         11  the facilities being proposed for their

         12  neighborhoods.  How do you feel the Community Board,

         13  et cetera would respond, would take notification?

         14                 MS. GREENE: I don't believe that

         15  Community Board 16 in Brooklyn, would automatically

         16  reject such a proposal.  I think that it will afford

         17  us an opportunity to dialogue with those involved,

         18  to hear our concerns about the over- saturation in

         19  the community, to hear our concerns about the needs

         20  of the community in terms of additional resources to

         21  come with a facility such as this, if it is decided

         22  in the community.

         23                 MR. PITSCH: I can say the case in

         24  Fort Greene, wherein the Fort Greene Association was

         25  apprised of the, I think it's the Association of
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          2  Independent Living, which was going to bring in a

          3  facility in the historic district.  Which would mean

          4  that that house would forever become an institution

          5  within the historic district, it would be a modified

          6  structure so it would not longer have the real

          7  context of the historic district.

          8                 What we then did, was get in a Van --

          9  well first of all we contacted many of the realtors

         10  and found alternative housing.  We then got in a Van

         11  and went round to the Independent Living people and

         12  showed them these alternative houses, some of which

         13  were fairly priced within their own price

         14  guidelines.

         15                 So, I don't think the notification of

         16  a facility is going to cause us to reject that

         17  particular facility, but we may look for an

         18  alternative.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you very

         20  much.  The term stealth facility has been used in

         21  more than one occasion by members of the community

         22  to describe the approach that is presently being

         23  used and it seems to me that notification would help

         24  eliminate the stealth aspects of the process.  Thank

         25  you very much for your testimony.
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          2                 I want to take a moment to

          3  acknowledge Councilwoman Diana Reyna who has been

          4  working very hard in her District on similar matters

          5  and I also want to congratulate her on her

          6  reelection in the Democratic Primary.

          7                 Do you have any comments or

          8  observations you want to make.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Thank you

         10  Chair.  I just wanted to thank you for acknowledging

         11  the fact of remembering.  Not so long ago we were

         12  battling the same issues and I look forward to a

         13  second hearing so that at least we can join the

         14  members of this public with members of my community.

         15    I wasn't able to give them enough advance notice,

         16  but I do know that there are many organizations,

         17  many black associations who are dealing with the

         18  same problem and would like to have their

         19  testimony's as part of this hearing.  And, in memory

         20  of James Davis, I am glad that his constituents are

         21  not forgetting that he fought hard to make sure that

         22  these issues were still addressed.  Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you very

         24  much.

         25                 (Following written testimony was
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          2  requested to be read into the record)

          3

          4  WRITTEN TESTIMONY OF:

          5  BARBARA VAN BUREN

          6  COMMUNITY BOARD 7

          7

          8                 My name is Barbara Van Buren and I am

          9  here representing Community Board Seven on

         10  Manhattan's Upper West Side. I am the co- chair of

         11  the Board's Health and Human Services Committee.

         12                 We support the resolution and have

         13  found in the past that when the community is

         14  involved in planning new facilities, we have been

         15  able to recommend linkages with community programs

         16  that enhance services.

         17                 However, we find that the resolution

         18  does not address the main problem our community has

         19  had with the practices of City agencies in placing

         20  their clients in housing.  In our Board District

         21  alone, as of June 2003, City agencies had 1,038

         22  placements in ten commercial SROs.  Both the

         23  Department of Homeless Services and the Human

         24  Resources Administration have "understandings", not

         25  contracts, with commercial SROs wherein they pay far
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          2  above rent stabilized rates, often $100 a night for

          3  substandard housing with no services for individuals

          4  needing emergency placements.  These "emergency"

          5  placements often last for years.  The $3,000 a month

          6  per individual that this may cost would go far

          7  towards creating permanent housing.

          8                 Compounding the waste of money for

          9  these exorbitant rates, is the fact that individuals

         10  with serious problems, a long history of

         11  homelessness, serious medical conditions, persistent

         12  mental illness, substance abuse problems, are placed

         13  by agencies, who are aware of these problems,

         14  without any meaningful services to help people work

         15  through their problems.

         16                 People arrive in a community with no

         17  prior notice, and no resources to help them.

         18  Although protocol requires one visit a month to each

         19  client, for various reasons, that often does not

         20  take place.  One of them is that the Human Resources

         21  Administration, at the request of the SRO hotel

         22  owners, move their clients every 28 days, so they

         23  will be unable to establish permanent residences.

         24  This leaves the clients unable to establish roots

         25  and make use of community services, and the case
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          2  managers having to follow their clients to a

          3  different hotel every month.            Instead of

          4  providing on- site services, case managers may have

          5  to travel to a different hotel for everyone on their

          6  caseloads.  This definitely minimizes the amount of

          7  time which can be spent helping people.

          8                 We would like to see a City Council

          9  resolution requiring City agencies which place

         10  people in housing:

         11                 One, to negotiate contracts for

         12  housing at rates consistent with rent stabilization

         13  and setting forth expectations of the landlords.

         14                 Two, to provide meaningful supportive

         15  services to the people they are placing in

         16  communities.

         17                 Three, to maintain linkages with

         18  Community Boards and other concerned community

         19  groups.

         20                 We would be glad to work with you to

         21  develop such a resolution.

         22

         23  Barbara Van Buren

         24  Community Board 7, Manhattan

         25  250 West 87th Street, New York City, NY 10024
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          2

          3                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Council Member

          4  Addabbo, as the prime sponsor, do you want to say

          5  some parting concluding words?

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Only the fact

          7  that I appreciate the Chair's job today and those

          8  that gave testimony, I thank them very much for

          9  being here today, for their time and testimony.

         10  Hopefully, there are brighter days ahead for our

         11  homeless situation and for Intro. 274-A.  Thank you.

         12                 MR. PITSCH: Mr. Perkins, may I ask to

         13  make one comment?

         14                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Sure.

         15                 MR. PITSCH: I want to commend Council

         16  Member Addabbo for his work in working with the

         17  City- wide Coalition for Community Facility Reform.

         18  We are very much aware of what you are doing and we

         19  do thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  I want to thank

         21  everyone for being with us today, those who

         22  testified, as well as those who were present.  This

         23  has been the first hearing on this bill that was

         24  originally sponsored by Council Member James Davis.

         25  We will have another hearing and we will be looking
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          2  forward to hearing from the public as well as from

          3  the administration again.

          4                 It is clear that this is a very, very

          5  important matter, this question of notification.  It

          6  is significant not only from the perspective of the

          7  community that needs to know in advance exactly what

          8  is coming to them so they not only can welcome it,

          9  but they can also plan for it, as well as know about

         10  the questions of concentration, about the questions

         11  of saturation, about the questions of equal

         12  distribution of such facilities within their

         13  borough, as well as throughout the City.

         14                 By the same token, the City in

         15  administering the program will be focusing on how

         16  they can appropriately notify the community, the

         17  Community Boards, the Council Members, the Borough

         18  Presidents about the facilities.  They will be able

         19  to focus on what types of facilities are already in

         20  the neighborhood, the concentration of such

         21  facilities, whether or not it is appropriate to go

         22  forward, as well as notifying the community of the

         23  perspective developers, contractors, their track

         24  record, so on and so forth.  So, everything can be

         25  above board and transparent and therefore our City
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          2  can run with the confidence and support of the

          3  people for whom it is supposed to represent.

          4                 I want to thank everyone again and

          5  this meeting is now adjourned.

          6                 (Hearing concluded 1:19 p.m.)
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          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, LENORE NAGLE, do hereby certify

         10  that the foregoing is a true and accurate transcript

         11  of the within proceeding.

         12                 I further certify that I am not

         13  related to any of the parties to this action by

         14  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         15  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         16                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         17  set my hand this 15th day of September 2003.
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